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CHILI PLANNING BOARD
March 13, 2018

A meeting of the Chili Planning Board was held on March 13, 2018 at the Chili Town Hall, 3333 
Chili Avenue, Rochester, New York  14624 at 7:00 p.m.  The meeting was called to order by 
Chairperson Michael Nyhan.

PRESENT:  Paul Bloser, David Cross, Matt Emens, John Hellaby, Glenn Hyde, Ron 
Richmond and Chairperson Michael Nyhan.

ALSO PRESENT: Michael Hanscom, Town Engineering Representative; David Lindsay, 
Commissioner of Public Works/Superintendent of Highways; Eric Stowe, 
Assistant Counsel for the Town; Paul Wanzenried, Building Department 
Manger.  

Chairperson Michael Nyhan declared this to be a legally constituted meeting of the Chili 
Planning Board.  He explained the meeting's procedures and introduced the Board and front 
table.  He announced the fire safety exits. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

1. Application of Frederick Property Group, 349 W. Commercial Street, Suite 3300, East 
Rochester, New York 14445, property owner: Chili Plaza Properties LLC for preliminary 
site plan approval for a change of use in portion of building (Suite B-7) to allow a retail 
store (florist shop) where office space was permitted at property located at 3240 Chili 
Avenue in G.B. zone. 

Steve Ohrenstein was present to represent the application.  

MR. OHRENSTEIN:   My name is Steve Ohrenstein representing Frederick Property 
Group.  I'm just here for the change of use for the space.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  What was the use and what it is being changed to?  
MR. OHRENSTEIN:   Jackson Hewitt turned into a florist.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Do you have the hours of operation for the business?  
MR. OHRENSTEIN:   I believe they're open from 9 to 6.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  9 to 6.  Okay.  

COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE:  None.

Michael Nyhan made a motion to close the Public Hearing portion of this application, and John 
Hellaby seconded the motion.  The Board unanimously approved the motion.

The Public Hearing portion of this application was closed at this time.

MATT EMENS:  Comment one on the engineer's report from Lu Engineers, the overall 
site plan, plaza site plan for the parking, I know that -- I think -- I guess I'm bringing that up now 
because it may come up in a little bit.  I don't know if we have a resolution to that at the side 
table.  

PAUL WANZENRIED:  You're talking with regard to the overall site plan? 
MATT EMENS:  Yes.  The parking requirements and the questions on that.  I know that 

always comes up with an issue when we're using -- changing the sites, see the analysis in here 
and we ask the general question on -- if we have an overall site plan that is updated. 

PAUL WANZENRIED:  We have a preliminary site plan the plaza brought before us from 
May '16, somewhere around there, December 2016.  They haven't come back for final yet, but I 
don't see this is going to be that much more of an intensive use parking requirement.  I think I 
would just ask the Board to mandate no outdoor sales.  Okay?  Storage, sales, make that a 
condition, if they would, please.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  No outdoor storage did you say?  And sales.  Okay.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  And -- in review, I noticed that there is a cart out there in front of 

her store.  It's not doing anything and -- but I don't -- we have not allowed anybody or have been 
prohibiting people from doing outdoor sales and storage.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  In GB zones.  That's all I have.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Everybody should have received the updated SEAF.  I just want to 

make two comments on that.  
Steve (Ohrenstein), with your permission Question 10 and 11, "Will the proposed action be 

connected with existing private and public water supply?"
I will mark "Yes" on that and change it with my initials with today's date.  
I believe you're connecting to public water, correct?  With the florist?  
MR. OHRENSTEIN:   Yes. 
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MICHAEL NYHAN:  And also, "Will the proposed action be connected to an existing 
waste water utilities?"  

Same.  I believe you're connecting to the sewer system?  
MR. OHRENSTEIN:   Correct. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  I so will make that change.  Those are the only two changes I will 

make to the SEAF.

Michael Nyhan made a motion to declare the Board lead agency as far as SEQR, and based on 
evidence and information presented at this meeting, determined the application to be an unlisted 
action with no significant environmental impact, and John Hellaby seconded the motion.  The 
Board all voted yes on the motion. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Conditions for the application?  
I have application subject to all required permits, inspections, code compliance regulations.  
The Fire Marshal requests review of this before approval, do you know?  
JOHN HELLABY:  He -- he had no comment. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  No comment.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  He -- he has no comment.  But they would be subject to a life 

safety permit and an operating permit, so.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  So we'll make it subject to the approval by the Town Fire Marshal 

and also any signage change shall comply with the Town Code, including obtaining permits.  
And there will be no outdoor storage or sales.  
Any other conditions?  
With those conditions, application of Frederick Property Group, 349 W. Commercial 

Street, Suite 3300, East Rochester, New York 14445, property owner: Chili Plaza Properties LLC 
for preliminary site plan approval for a change of use in portion of building (Suite B-7) to allow a 
retail store (florist shop) where office space was permitted at property located at 3240 Chili 
Avenue in G.B. zone.   

DECISION: Unanimously approved by a vote of 7 yes with the following conditions:  

1. No outdoor storage or sales.

2. Application is subject to all required permits, inspections, and code 
compliance regulations.

3.  Application is subject to all required life safety reviews and permits from 
the Town Fire Marshal.

4. Any signage change shall comply with Town Code, including obtaining 
sign permits.

    Note: Final site plan approval has been waived by the Planning Board.  

2. Application of Basset Homes Inc., 2680 Ridge Road West Suite B100C, Rochester, New 
York 14626, property owner: Panagiotis Tamoutselis; for special use permit to erect a 
single-family dwelling with an in-law suite at property located at 51 Shrubbery Lane in 
R-1-15 zone. 

Patrick Basset was present to represent the application.  

MR. BASSET:   Patrick Basset representing Basset Homes.  I'm here this evening to ask 
for an in-law approval on a single-family lot.  I think you all have submitted the floor and the 
front elevations.  Basic house is a 15, 1600 square foot Colonial with approximately 900 square 
foot -- little less than 900 square foot addition for single-level family member to live in.  
Three-car garage.  One would be associated with the in-law and the other two would be 
associated with the main house.  

I believe you have floor plans and elevations.  I have a bigger set if you would like to look 
at it in a bigger form. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  If you could just up roll it and put it on the board so other people 
can see it.

MR. BASSET:   Elevations or floor plan?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Elevations would be great.  
MR. BASSET:   Three-bedroom home, 2 1/2 baths.  The main house which is attached to 

the in-law -- the in-law would have one bathroom, main bath and just a little kitchen, eat-in type 
kitchen and a living room, master -- master bedroom.  That's it.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  What is currently on the lot?  
MR. BASSET:   Empty lot that has been part of the subdivision that is fairly old.  I want to 

say it was probably put together 20 years ago and it's 51 Shrubbery Lane.  I'm -- not very far from 
here.  It is just a bunch of dead trees on there now. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  There never was a home there?  Never put -- built a home there?  
MR. BASSET:   Correct.  
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RON RICHMOND:  Is the property and the house already sold?  Do you have prospective 
buyers already?  

MR. BASSET:   We do.  They're in the audience here. 
RON RICHMOND:  The in-law will be used for?  
MR. BASSET:   90-year-old grandfather for today but Andy's mom is getting up there, too, 

so he will want her to stay with him once it's available.  
RON RICHMOND:  Okay.  I'm good.  
JOHN HELLABY:  Just a comment.  It appears you have used larger doors in the addition 

area, the apartment area, 3-0 doors, which is a good idea.  That's all I have.  
MR. BASSET:   Our goal would be to make it so you could pretty much roller skate from 

the garage right into the house and back out.  
JOHN HELLABY:  At 90, I don't think you're rollerskating?  
MR. BASSET:   Probably not.  But this guy might, though.  
DAVID CROSS:  We're going to apply the standard conditions for an in-law, Mike 

(Nyhan)?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Yes. 
DAVID CROSS:  Stating somehow there is a deed restriction that says the in-law has to be 

an in-law?  
MR. BASSET:   Correct.  
DAVID CROSS:  Okay.  That's it.  
ERIC STOWE:  They just brought up revising a couple of the short form answers pursuant 

to the SEQR review.  There were a couple short form answers that Mr. Hanscom pointed out that 
just need to be revised, just getting the applicant's consent to revise those. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Number 2, I assume you're speaking about?  
ERIC STOWE:  Number 3 on Lu Engineer's letter.  Question 2, Question 9 and Question 

17.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  
MR. BASSET:   As to a declaration?  
ERIC STOWE:  No.  The -- the short form, one of the environment forms that was filed.  
MR. BASSET:   Okay.  
ERIC STOWE:  Yes.  2 is with respect to the Building Department needs to issue a permit.  

If the applicant is okay with just adding one additional permit that's necessary from the Building 
Department?  

MR. BASSET:   (Indicating). 
ERIC STOWE:  Question 9 says, "Does the proposed action meet or exceed the Energy 

Code requirements?"
It does meet the Energy Code requirement, right?  
MR. BASSET:   Yes, absolutely. 
ERIC STOWE:  You're okay with us modifying that to a "yes"?  
MR. BASSET:   Yes. 
ERIC STOWE:  Question 17, it will create storm water discharge that will not flow to 

adjacent properties; right?  
MR. BASSET:   Correct.
ERIC STOWE:  So the overall answer would be "yes" with 17A; B, "no."  And it will be 

directed towards an established conveyance system?  
MR. BASSET:   Correct. 
ERIC STOWE:  So E being "Yes" and you're okay with those changes?  
MR. BASSET:   For clarity, an additional building permit?  
ERIC STOWE:  A building permit.  
MR. BASSET:   A building permit.  Okay.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  I made each of those changes on this form and initialed those, as 

well, on the short form.  
MR. BASSET:   Agreed.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Thank you.  

COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE:  None.

Michael Nyhan made a motion to close the Public Hearing portion of this application, and John 
Hellaby seconded the motion.  The Board unanimously approved the motion.

The Public Hearing portion of this application was closed at this time.

Michael Nyhan made a motion to declare the Board lead agency as far as SEQR, and based on 
evidence and information presented at this meeting, determined the application to be an unlisted 
action with no significant environmental impact, and John Hellaby seconded the motion.  The 
Board all voted yes on the motion. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  For conditions on this application, I have application is subject to all 
required permits, inspections, code compliance regulations.  

Special Use Permit is granted for use by in-law only and shall cease to exist when the 
in-law ceases to use it.  

The in-law apartment may not be used as a rental unit.  
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The applicant's attorney to file a decision letter in the book of deeds in the Monroe County 
Clerk's Office and provide proof of filing to the Planning Board Attorney and the Town of Chili 
Building Department.  Filing decision letter shall be indexed against the properties owner's 
name.

And pending approval of the Building Inspector.  
Any other conditions?  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Mike (Nyhan), that deed should be filed by -- prior to the C of O 

inspection.  Proof of that deed needs to be in our office prior to the C of O inspection.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  
ERIC STOWE:  Proof of the decision filing, right?  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Yes. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  So just for that one condition, applicant's attorney to file a decision 

letter in the book of deeds of the Monroe County Clerk's Office and provide proof of the filing to 
the Planning Board Attorney and the Town Chili Building Department prior to the issuance of C 
of O.  When filing, the decision letter shall be indexed against the property owner's name.

Application of Basset Homes Inc., 2680 Ridge Road West Suite B100C, Rochester, New 
York 14626, property owner: Panagiotis Tamoutselis; for special use permit to erect a single 
family dwelling with an in-law suite at property located at 51 Shrubbery Lane in R-1-15 zone. 

DECISION: Unanimously approved by a vote of 7 yes with the following conditions:

1. The special use permit is granted for use by in-law only and shall cease
to exist when the in-law ceases to use it.

2. The in-law apartment may not be used as a rental unit.

3. Applicant's attorney to file decision letter in book of deeds with the
Monroe County Clerk's Office and provide proof of filing to Planning
Board Attorney and Town of Chili Building Department.  When filing,
decision letter shall be indexed against property owner's name.

4. Pending approval of the Building Inspector.

5. Application is subject to all required permits, inspections and code
compliance regulations.

3. Application of Michael Parker, 2060 Brighton-Henrietta TL Road, Rochester, New York 
14623, property owner: NYS ARC; for preliminary site plan approval to erect three 
canopies over building entrances at property located at 10 Ballantyne Road in RAO-20 & 
FPO zone. 

Zdzislaw Mazurek was present to represent the application.

MR. MAZUREK:  Hi.  My name is Zdzislaw Mazurek, architect with the ARC of Monroe, 
and this is the property at 10 Ballantyne Road.  One of the -- besides the addition of the three 
canopies, we're also asking a waiver on the landscape requirements and if I can answer any 
question regarding that.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Go ahead and present the project.  
MR. MAZUREK:  Basically, I -- what -- I think we have a demonstration in your booklets 

that I sent out.  Basically we are putting three canopies to protect the entrances.  One area in the 
front --- 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Excuse me, sir, could you step over to the board and hold it up on 
the board so everybody can see it as you're talking.  That would be great.  Thank you.  

MR. MAZUREK:  Basically, there are three entrances here.  This is the main entrance with 
the parking lot, where the buses come and they unload their patients or -- or clients as they're 
called.  

So they can get in there easily.  Right now there is no canopy that extends into the parking 
lot area and this will be basically -- to some degree a new canopy, but it will extend into the 
parking lot so one of the small buses can come in and unload the -- its passengers and they can 
go into the side entrance.  

Plus also there is drop-off points in the northern part of the building, which we would 
cover with canopies.  There is already a sidewalk there.  So, um -- so the issue was, you know, 
one of the requirements to have landscaping, but since we are basically going into a parking lot 
area, and covering only a sidewalk, I didn't think it was valid.  

Plus, if we look at the site itself, we see it is very green.  So there is always landscaping 
going on to provide, you know, shading.  We're not encroaching on any green spaces.  We're not 
destroying green spaces.  

We're actually improving the quality of the building itself.  All of the runoff water on these 
canopies will go in the same area that -- that it always has been, so we're not really affecting the 
Black Creek stream area.  You know.  So I don't -- I don't believe there is much of an impact of 
anything, so we're just asking for approval to make this construction and improve the -- the look 
and the functioning of this building itself.  



PB  3/13/18 - Page 5

 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  So we have -- the Board has pictures of the canopies.  
Did you bring any?  
MR. MAZUREK:  Yes.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Thank you.  
MR. MAZUREK:  From the pictures, there has been slight modification.  There is actually 

an island there to protect the -- the bollards there -- I mean the posts in the parking lot area.  And 
I read the report from your engineer who had suggested also protecting the columns in the 
sidewalk section, but technically they're stronger than the bollards because they're all concrete 
piers with -- with steel columns on top.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  So the only change we see to this is curbing that has been added as a 
result of the engineer's comments; is that correct?  

MR. MAZUREK:  Yes.  It was a safety issue that was -- that was at another location for 
ARC of Monroe, and they felt they needed it to just to make sure it was a safe area so you can 
easily drive in and kind of directs you into the path.  

RON RICHMOND:  Any proposed changes in illumination?  
MR. MAZUREK:  There will be some extra illumination as far as numbers go, but the area 

is not being used at night at all, so it's more -- anything that is already there will be, you know, 
basically existing plus we're adding some in the canopy for cloudy days, because -- the facility is 
actually not used at night, so everything seems to shut down.  

JOHN HELLABY:  Any new light fixtures have to be dark-sky compliant, just so you can 
make note of that.  

The Fire Marshal also has a concern with the restricted emergency vehicle access.  I 
know -- I don't see any dimensions on your site drawing, but I'm not sure where he got this photo 
from.  He probably took it off Google Earth or something.  And it looks by roughing the 
dimension out, you're going to impact this traffic here and you will not have enough room to get 
an emergency vehicle through there.  

Have they given consideration as to how they're going to re-work that parking?  
MR. MAZUREK:  The parking stays as is basically.  We're not really alternating it. 
JOHN HELLABY:  According to his roughing it out there, you won't have enough width 

for a drive lane through there from the end of the canopy to where the cars are parked. 
MR. MAZUREK:  No, there should be.  Here is the site plan, and here is the distance and 

it -- as you look, it is about 35 feet from the edge of the building, so.  
JOHN HELLABY:  With the canopy?  
MR. MAZUREK:  Yeah. 
JOHN HELLABY:  This brings it quite a ways out to here.  I mean, I'm not going to make 

a big deal out of it, but the Building Department is liable to come out and say, "Hey, wait a 
minute.  We have an issue here."

You might want to try to resolve this ahead of time.  If you're going to lose all those 
parking areas.  

MR. MAZUREK:  We can actually measure it on -- onsite.  
JOHN HELLABY:  I would measure it out and see what sort of drive lane you get through 

there because you need a required minimum.  I don't recall what it is. 
DAVID CROSS:  26 foot.  
JOHN HELLABY:  26 foot unrestricted and I doubt you have that.  
MR. MAZUREK:  We're probably in the close range.  We'll -- we will verify that. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  We'll make it subject to the review and approval of the Fire 

Marshal.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Where is that measurement coming from?  Your 35 feet?  Is it 

coming from the building?  
MR. MAZUREK:  From the edge of the building, all of the way out.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Okay.  Fire Marshall has inadvertently it from the curb out not 

from the building, so that will make it back in. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  Got that worked out all ready.  
JOHN HELLABY:  Hopefully.  
DAVID CROSS:  I just have a question on the -- on the Fire Marshal's comments.  If there 

has to be a little restriping to get that done, I don't see that is a big deal.  
ERIC STOWE:  The Planning Board cannot waive the 1 percent requirement.  Only allow 

it to be a donation to the Landscaping Fund.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  Thank you.  
DAVID LINDSAY:  Just make note that the Town Engineer indicated that Question 2 of 

the SEQR form and Question 3 were not completed.  I would just ask that it -- the applicant 
objects to the following modifications that Question 2 would be answered as a "yes," that the 
Town of Chili building permit will be required.  

Question 3 would be answered as 2.24 acres for the total site acreage.   .1 acres is the 
disturbed area and 2.24 is the total acreage for Question C.  If he doesn't have any objections to 
that, we can modify that form.  

MR. MAZUREK:  (Indicating). 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  No objections to that. 
MR. MAZUREK:  No.  I did have a question to Counsel.  
ERIC STOWE:  Yep?  
MR. MAZUREK:  You say you can't give a waiver and -- but could I have a clarification 

of the requirement of the landscaping, because the landscaping is -- is it based on the area that is 
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being affected or is it the general area?  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Based on the project cost.  
MR. MAZUREK:  I understand the 1 percent, but I don't understand the requirement of 

having landscaping on the job site.  I'm not sure -- because our job site is -- basically consists of, 
you know, a structure. 

PAUL WANZENRIED:  It can go anywhere on the site. 
MR. MAZUREK:  It can go anywhere.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  You will either plant 1 percent of the project cost in plantings or 

you will donate 1 percent of the project cost to the Tree Fund.  
MR. MAZUREK:  So we would have to show on the plan how we are going to add extra 

vegetation onto the site?  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Correct.  
MR. MAZUREK:  Okay.  

COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE:  None.

Michael Nyhan made a motion to close the Public Hearing portion of this application, and John 
Hellaby seconded the motion.  The Board unanimously approved the motion.

The Public Hearing portion of this application was closed at this time.

MICHAEL NYHAN:  We'll note in addition to the SEQR, the County public comments, 
it's within a one-mile radius of the airport, so the application was approved from the County of 
Monroe.  

Michael Nyhan made a motion to declare the Board lead agency as far as SEQR, and based on 
evidence and information presented at this meeting, determined the application to be an unlisted 
action with no significant environmental impact, and John Hellaby seconded the motion.  The 
Board all voted yes on the motion.

MICHAEL NYHAN:  What condition for landscaping did you have on this, Paul 
(Wanzenried)?  

PAUL WANZENRIED:  What would the applicant wish to do?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  I mean if the applicant wants to make 1 percent, submit a 

landscape plan to me.  If you're not, then I will take a check.  Okay?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  You want landscaping plans, though?  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Yeah.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  You do?  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Sure.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  The applicant shall comply with all pertinent Monroe County 

Development Review Committee comments.  
Application is subject to all required permits, inspections, code compliance regulations.  
It is subject to the approval of the Town Fire Marshal and any signage change shall comply 

with the Town Code, including obtaining sign permits.  
And submission of the landscape plan for approval by the Building Department.  
Any others?  
With those conditions, application of Michael Parker, 2060 Brighton-Henrietta TL Road, 

Rochester, New York 14623, property owner: NYS ARC; for preliminary site plan approval to 
erect three canopies over building entrances at property located at 10 Ballantyne Road in 
RAO-20 & FPO zone. 

DECISION:   Unanimously approved by a vote of 7 yes with the following conditions:  

1. Applicant shall comply with all pertinent Monroe County Development 
Review Committee comments.

2. Application is subject to all required permits, inspections, and code 
compliance regulations.

3. Subject to approval by the Town Fire Marshal.

4. Any signage change shall comply with Town Code, including obtaining 
sign permits.

5. Submission of landscape plans for approval by the Building Department.

    Note:  Final site plan approval has been waived by the Planning Board.    

4. Application of Hospitality Syracuse, Inc., 290 Elmwood Davis Road, Suite 320, 
Liverpool, New York 13088, property owner: Chili Plaza Properties LLC; for preliminary 
site plan approval to erect a 2,204 sq. ft. restaurant at property located at 3240 Chili 
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Avenue in G.B. zone. 

Christopher Kambar and John Mason were present to represent the application.  

MR. KAMBAR:  Good evening.  My name is Christopher Kambar with APD Engineering 
& Architecture.  Also with me tonight is John Mason from Hospitality Syracuse.  

We are back in front of the Board.  Last time we were here was August.  We kind of hit a 
roadblock as far as what to do with the project and how it fit in with the Town's overall Master 
Plan.  

We have made just slight changes to the project since you have seen it last.  There is a 
vestibule now shown on what would be the southwestern corner of the building or what you 
would consider the front corner of the building.  Other than that, it is a very similar project.  

My client has asked that we come back in front of the Board and try to work with some of 
the Board's concerns as far as the Taco Bell fitting in with the Town's overall plan and trying to 
get some sort of semblance of preliminary approval or at least on that subject so that we can 
either move forward or move on.  

Kind of a brief overview of the project, it's a Taco Bell.  It's about 2,200 square feet.  It 
does have a drive-thru use.  We have worked with -- we are working with the Architectural 
Advisory Committee.  We have received very good feedback from them tonight.  And if we do 
move forward, we would be looking to make some of the changes they did suggest and come 
back before them and obtain their positive recommendation.  

We do have a dumpster that is fully enclosed.  The materials would match the building, 
depending on where we go with the building materials.  We do have a patio area out in front that 
parallels Chili Avenue that would be screened with landscaping all along the front.  The intent of 
the landscaping would try to meet the Master Plan and add trees and shrubs along there to help 
soften the fact between Chili Ave. traffic and the parking area in front of the Chili Paul Plaza.  

There would be a few light poles relocated and a few others that would be added.  
Currently the existing pylon sign is to remain.  That may get relocated depending on the plaza 
owner and their input.  

As far as traffic in and around the plaza itself, we did try to line up some of the drive aisles 
and put a drive aisle through the middle of the parking area to help vehicular circulation.  

Taco Bell does receive deliveries from a WB62 truck and we do have enough room to 
bring that off Chili Avenue into their portion of the parking area and back out onto Chili.  Their 
deliveries would be, you know, hand truck off the truck and into the building.  

With that said, I guess I would kind of come back to that issue or -- or I guess I could 
address any questions first and then maybe we can work on the issue of the Taco Bell layout and 
the Master Plan and how that fits in with the -- with the Town of Chili's... 

MATT EMENS:  Since August, there are a couple things we have talked about asking you 
guys to look at.  One of them was talking with the -- with the landlord of the plaza about any 
other opportunities for different location and/or looking at a multi-tenant, multi-use building to 
front the street there.  

Did you guys do that?  
We -- I can answer part of that, as far as talking with the plaza owner.  But I can answer the 

part as far as multi-use, and relocating the building.  So there are several existing utilities cutting 
through the center of this property, which makes it very difficult to create a large enough 
building to have multi tenants in either one of the spaces.  I can point those out.  We have looked 
at several different layouts.  

At one point we did have the building over here (indicating) and we have had it turned 
sideways.  To try to fit in more with the Master Plan of the Town, we did rotate the building 90 
degrees and put it along or parallel to Chili Avenue.  

With Taco Bell's unique use, it makes it very difficult with their drive-thru and their use to 
add another building on or off them to make them a multi-tenant plaza. 

For one, if we did add any other building space, it would have to be out in back of the 
building.  It would be further away from the parking.  And most difficult for the plaza owner to 
rent because the access to that building, there would be no parking close to it.  It would be out 
back of our restaurant which does not make it conducive just to build more retail space, just -- 
you know, to try to fit in with that portion of the Master Plan.  

As far as the -- the relocation, like I said, we could put it here (indicating).  We could put it 
here (indicating).  Um, it seems to work best and work into the Master Plan best the way we have 
it laid out currently.  Um, and these are the utilities that run through the site (indicating), these 
lines that run through are easements right now.  I believe they're water and sewer that run 
through the site.  So we can't just add on to the building and make that work.  

MATT EMENS:  Well, you can, but it is expensive and it creates other issues.  So one -- so 
one of the points that I brought up this summer when you guys were here before, because as I 
pointed out at this meeting, you weren't the first ones to come here and talk about this kind of 
stuff and the challenges with the existing easement and the utilities underground.  

One of the things I pointed out to you guys, it wasn't necessarily your problem, but because 
you're currently here before us, it kind of is.  The fact that everyone keeps talking about it is 
difficult to do.  But not one person has come in here and with a project and talked about how 
expensive it is.  It is easy to say, "Oh, you can't do that."

But we know you can do it.  It is expensive.  I get it.  But not one person that has ever 
come in here with a project to talk about that has given even a rough order magnitude what that 
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is.  Is it $10,000, is it $100,000?  I don't know.  I still don't know.  You don't know.  I don't think 
anybody knows.  Because no one has ever looked at it.  

So once again, I'm not necessarily directing that frustration at you, but unfortunately it is 
your application here tonight and we still have this same roadblock of a question that never got 
answered, and the multiple things that we mentioned to you guys to go ask and look at it, I didn't 
see any iterations of the floor plan -- I'm sorry, the site plan layout.  You described a couple.  I 
don't think we saw any of those to appreciate those or not appreciate those, so thank you for 
explaining that.  

And I still am going back to the fact that this Board has got to make -- it is not just you 
guys.  It is the Town, it is this Board.  To make a Master Plan work, we have to all work together 
on that.  And I don't see -- yet again, I don't see the landlord here.  I'm not seeing him -- them 
coming forward with helping you guys out at all with this, and trying to make your project more 
palatable and feasible.  

So I would love to give you guys more comments on this, but as you pointed out, you 
really have not provided us anything new.  So unfortunately my comments aren't any different 
than they were this summer.  So I apologize, but I don't think there is much more I can say other 
than that. 

MR. KAMBAR:  Well, you know, looking at the plan and how it fits in with the Master 
Plan, I mean, what I'm hearing back from you right now is it is not approvable as is.  

MATT EMENS:  Those were my comments in August, and like I said, I don't see anything 
here that is changing my mind tonight.  

MR. KAMBAR:  Okay.  I mean, there is, I'm sure, other uses.  I'm sure it's a little more 
difficult with a quick-service restaurant that has a drive-thru to put multi tenants into this facility, 
but the fact is this is what is in front of you.  This is what we're proposing.  You know, this is one 
of the best layouts that we feel we can present.  

As -- I'm working for the end-user.  I'm not working for the plaza owner.  I can't speak for 
the plaza owner.  I can't tell you if he can find another tenant to go in next to us or how that 
would work.  We do know it would be difficult.  We do know it would be costly.  I don't 
necessarily think it's necessary.  I understand you have your Master Plan and you want 
multi-tenant buildings along the front of these properties.  This is an existing plaza.  I mean, we 
didn't create the situation, and I understand that you want to meet as much of the Master Plan as 
we possibly can.  In this instance, I don't think we can get to the point where you're looking for 
multi-tenant buildings.  I think I'd like you to look at this project -- as much as it meets the 
Master Plan, I would like to look at that and say, you know, how much of the Master Plan do we 
meet here?  Do we have to meet every square inch of it or as much as we possibly can for the use 
in front of you and to what we're presenting to you.  

And we certainly would welcome any feedback, any more feedback that you can provide.  I 
understand that we haven't changed much, and I apologize that I was not at that last meeting.  
But I will take your comments to heart and hopefully by the end of this, we can come to some 
sort of resolution as to whether or not this layout fits in the Town of Chili and whether or not the 
Town of Chili wants this Taco Bell in this location, in this project, and in this plaza.  You know, 
I would like to say that we can massage this and make it work for your Master Plan and -- but I 
look at the operation that Taco Bell has and what they have to do to operate their business, and I 
just don't see that it is feasible to add another tenant to the side of this building.  We can take the 
architecture and make it look like a multi-tenant building.  There are things we can do, but I don't 
see us being able to put another tenant next to this Taco Bell.  

There is room on the other side of the parking lot for potentially a separate business and a 
separate building, but again, I'm not working for the developer.  I'm working for Hospitality 
Syracuse who is proposing a Taco Bell and that's what we're presenting in front of you.  You 
know, if something like that is more feasible to fit into the Master Plan, we can certainly try to 
work with the property owner to maybe sketch out a shell that would work and maybe get a pad 
or an out parcel that we think would fit in there and help us reach the goals of the Master Plan, 
but again, I'm looking for your feedback and I'm looking to try to come to a resolution with the 
layout that is in front of you tonight.  

Honestly, my client doesn't want to keep spending money on the project if it's not going to 
go anywhere.  We have -- don't necessarily need a hard "no" or a vote, but we would like some 
semblance of "yes" or "no" if we feel like we can work with this and get through site plan 
approval or not.  

ERIC STOWE:  We did this in August.  There was talk of a Chili Center Master Plan and a 
Comprehensive Plan, correct?  I guess my only point would be when we're talking about plans, is 
it our Town-wide Comprehensive Plan or is it the Chili Center Master Plan, what it is we're 
looking for?  That is my -- just for clarity.  

MATT EMENS:  I believe from last August it was both that brought the clarity to it.  The 
only reason I was able to remember that because I asked for a copy of the minutes.  

ERIC STOWE:  But don't -- I would just ask don't use "Comprehensive" and "Master Plan" 
as interchangeable terms.  They're two distinct plans. 

MATT EMENS:  I didn't use the term.  He used the term.  So I will go back to -- and I 
don't know how much I need to repeat what I said this summer, but like I said, my comments 
really haven't changed.  Whether it is the Master Plan, the Comprehensive Plan, the fact that, you 
know, we -- we kind of already gave you the feedback and you guys haven't done anything with 
it.  I'm not trying to be mean.  Just pointing it out.  You just said a bunch of things and it all 
sounded great, but that is what we're looking for, you to come back this time so we could give 
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more feedback.  
One of the other comments that I did make is if you look at one of the pages in the -- hold 

on.  If we're going to do it right, I will quote it -- if I could just to clarify, you're referencing for 
look of Chili Center what is based on the Chili Center Master Plan, correct?  Unfortunately, I 
also learned that I talked a lot at that meeting.  So there was the Master Plan Committee.  There 
was also the comprehensive one, which is the Chili Center.  

MR. MASON:  Maybe -- 
MATT EMENS:  I don't know the legal terms to be corrected -- or the actual names of the 

two documents.  I know what I'm basically talking about, so if we need to clarify, it is those two 
documents I'm talking about.  I don't know.  

But the point is, in the document that I referenced this summer, is that there is a pretty 
picture in there that shows a building stretching from entrance to entrance that is a multi-tenant, 
multi-story building and I understand that is probably not achievable.  It's a pretty picture, but 
there is a lot of in between that could happen from a 2,200 square foot single-tenant building 
with a drive-thru as opposed to, you know, a -- a building that stretches that whole street front 
entrance to entrance.  There is something in between there.  I don't know what it is.  But there is 
definitely something in between those two things.  

So back to your point of could there be another building on the other side, is there 
something where it shifts over?  I don't know.  But that's kind of what we said this summer, is 
that those are the kind of things we wanted you to look at, because once we sign off on this plan 
and this single-tenant building fronting that street and your parking as it is currently laid out, 
there is no changing that.  We already struggled trying to get the parking information and the 
parking counts for the rest of the plaza.

Once again, not totally your problem but it doesn't help your case right now.  So if we go 
and sign off and say you need X number of spots and this is where you have them and laid them 
out here, we're handcuffed when another building goes in there.  Where do we put it because now 
you need all that parking.  So that is where we said go back to the landlord, talk a little bit and 
see if there are other options out there, get his help, get his feedback.  You know, that was a good 
part of it, so.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Anything else, Matt (Emens)?  
JOHN HELLABY:  I echo Matt (Emens)' concerns.  And again, it is with the Chili Center 

Master Plan.  
MR. KAMBAR:  Are we talking about the Chili Center Plan Master Plan limits?  
JOHN HELLABY:  You are unfortunately.  You front the street that the line runs right 

down.  So that portion is in.  
An awful lot of people put an awful lot of time in this vision, and I totally understand it's a 

real tough situation if you're over there with all -- as far as all of the sewer easements and 
everything else.  

The only thing I would offer up is the same thing I offered up in August.  You have to 
come up -- what might, and again, I say "might," because I can't speak for the rest of these Board 
members -- might make it a little more palatable for everybody you come up with a Disney 
effect.  I said it in August.  Come up with a situation where you have three or four different store 
fronts along Chili Avenue.  I'm not really too concerned personally what is inside.  I mean, they 
do it in Disneyland all of the time.  You walk down the street and you have got four different 
buildings, but it's one big store, all of the way through it.  And it might make it an easier sell, 
because it's the perception, I think, is what they're looking for.  A streetscape and everything that 
goes along with it.  

MR. KAMBAR:  It is challenging with a 2,200 square foot building that is only so long to 
come up with multi uses because then the uses look so tiny.  It is easy to look at a plan and say 
we could do three or four entrances, when in reality, it's probably not likely to get more than two 
out of a building this size.  But I understand what you're saying and I appreciate your feedback.  

DAVID CROSS:  I think Matt (Emens) and Al (Hellaby) did a really good job.  This is it.  
Chili Center, this is our Main Street.  A lot of people put a lot of effort into the Chili Center 
Master Plan.  That is the vision we want for the future.  So once we bake the cake, we can't get 
the eggs back here.  

So I was hoping you would be a lot further along with the architectural plans.  Nothing has 
changed since August.  And that was -- that is kind of -- that is tough to look at the architectural 
plans here.  Nothing has changed.  I mean, our architectural standards in the Town, they're right 
in the code.  They call for federal style architecture.  Not even close here.  You know.  I don't 
think it would have been difficult to put a little more effort in that.  

I'm interested to hear what the plaza owner -- I can see the pylon sign is down, but I 
think -- if they want to put something back up, that should go congruent with this application.  Is 
that black -- that black line you're showing along Chili Avenue, is that some sort of ornamental 
fence, Chris (Kambar)?  

MR. KAMBAR:  That's just the landscaping.  The architectural rendering makes it look 
darker green. 

DAVID CROSS:  I think one more comment I had back in August is that a picket, 
architectural fence with pilasters would be a nice accent along Chili Avenue.  I think you have a 
long ways to go.  Mostly architecturally.  

MR. KAMBAR:  Thank you for your comments.  I don't think we wanted to dump a lot of 
money into it architecturally, because right now what we're hearing is this layout doesn't meet 
your Master Plan standards and this Board doesn't agree to approve it.  I mean, I guess we could 
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push you to a vote and figure that out for sure.  And I have to work with -- with my client who, 
you know, is not the overall plaza owner.  You know, for what you want, you know, we really 
need to sit down with the plaza owner and get him to come up with a master plan for his 
property.  And I'm not sure that that is viable or not.  

DAVID CROSS:  Understood.  That's all I have.  
PAUL BLOSER:  I don't have any other comment other than I have gotten an overall sense 

of déjà vu because I feel we just heard this all in August and there has been no change since 
August.  

ERIC STOWE:  Come back to me in a minute.  
MICHAEL HANSCOM:  No additional comments.  

COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE: 

JOHN SPAULDING
MR. SPAULDING:  John Spaulding, citizen of Chili.  Have you done a traffic count?  A 

traffic study at all?  
MR. KAMBAR:  We have not.  
MR. SPAULDING:  I used to belong to the Fire Department and we asked for a yellow and 

red flashing light because it's very difficult sometimes to get the apparatus out onto the Chili 
Avenue, and the State denied us that.  You're going to increase traffic on the avenue 
exponentially with a Taco Bell seeing how popular it is, and I think that will be another problem 
for you, as well as some of the businesses in the plaza already have -- in their rental agreements 
that they can be viewed unobstructed, and if you're going to put a building up, you will obstruct 
some of their views.  

STEVE OHRENSTEIN 
MR. OHRENSTEIN:   I would like to speak on the landlord's behalf.  I own Stonewood 

Builders.  I also own Ferrari's Pizza in the plaza.  I manage the plaza for him now.  And just to go 
over what you guys are proposing with the multi buildings, um, I don't want -- I want to say this 
in a nice way, but basically, you know, this plaza is what it is.  Just to get asphalt in the plaza was 
due to fact of being a friend of mind, we were able to pull that off.  It is known as the worst plaza 
in Chili, with potholes everywhere.  We have done a lot.  That plan -- unfortunately, I don't think 
the landlord has a Master Plan.  Having Taco Bell here willing to put up a structure that is going 
to do something good I think is the only option.  

Michael (Kuskin) is not or the family is not in the position where they will go ahead and 
put multiple buildings up or whatever to rent it.  He is unfortunately having issues with the 
properties he has, so I just want you guys to take that into consideration that if you push them off 
the table, there is nobody else to go -- that is saying, "Hey, we want to build a building on the 
front."

I'm opening up another business that I will put an application for the old Monro Muffler 
space to do something there.  So being in that plaza for 8, 10, 12 hours a day, traffic count, the 
space, there is ample parking.  There is no issues.  

I live right here in Bellaqua.  I think Taco Bell would be a phenomenal situation, but if it is 
something you guys are trying to do your Master Plan by having business versus to -- you know, 
my take, it might kinda push them out of it.  

We did underground plumbing and all of the stuff that is there, and to answer your question 
as far as what you're asking with the building, I know that you're talking six figures.  It's not 
going be doable for a tenant to even pay the money.  The landlord will not pay the money.  So 
just want to make it known, that if guys want a business there, you might want to look at a 
Master Plan.  We are in Chili Paul Plaza and it is what it is.  

As far as all of the other outstanding items, we're taking care of them over the next 2 1/2, 3 
weeks between the dumpster pads -- the pylon did come down and we are putting up the new one 
this week in the front and the back we're going to be doing, as well.  

I know that by putting that business there, I think it's a good thing, but I would be willing to 
put my life on fact that no building will go up there with multiple tenants.  The landlord will 
shoot it right down and unfortunately he doesn't have a plan for the project.  

Michael Nyhan made a motion to close the Public Hearing portion of this application, and John 
Hellaby seconded the motion.  The Board unanimously approved the motion.

The Public Hearing portion of this application was closed at this time.
 

ERIC STOWE:  I went and redid the map on the Master Plan and it stops -- the Chili 
Center Master Plan -- thank you -- and it does stop at Chili Avenue and does not include the 
plaza.  So that -- it doesn't exceed the bounds of -- of Chili Avenue.  Nor a property that is past 
Chili Avenue.  

MATT EMENS:  So we ignore the fact that the buildable -- just asking.  
ERIC STOWE:  It's not included.  And if it was supposed to be included as part of the 

discussion, it needed to be included.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  I think there were also -- in the Chili Center Master Plan, there were 

options and it didn't say which option was picked, but one option was just to improve the 
roadway to the public space only and the other was to improve the public space of the 
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right-of-way but then to encourage the development beyond that, with the Town to try to work to 
develop it for the look it was.  So there wasn't any set decision on which option is set, so to speak 
in the plan.  There were just options put forth to consider.  

MATT EMENS:  That's in Chili Center Comprehensive?
MICHAEL NYHAN:  No.  The Chili Center Master Plan.  
Also just some comments about nothing really being very different on this plan from the 

previous meeting.  I know up to the previous meeting there were several meetings, you know, 
with the initial proposal that came in with a drive-thru along the front.  There was a drive-thru 
that the building was actually perpendicular to the road, not parallel to the road.  I know that the 
developer has worked with the Town to try to make this as pleasing as possible to view it along 
Chili Avenue.  

At the last meeting one of the comments was that they weren't wanted in Chili Center, that 
you just let them know that, that they would understand, but they didn't want to spend a lot of 
money changing anything.  If it was the Board's opinion that this just doesn't fit there and we 
weren't going to vote on that anyway.  So that is really why -- and the explanation that I'm 
hearing why we haven't seen a lot of difference in this plan.  It's not that this developer isn't 
willing to work with anybody to try to make this work.  It's that he needs somebody to work with 
to do that.  

I sat through the Architectural Advisory Committee Board and I saw a lot of cooperation to 
try to make this building look as appealing as possible along Chili Avenue.  

I think the only thing we really need to look at is, do we want this building at this location?  
Everything else can be changed.  The look of the building can be changed.  The architectural 
amenities on the building can be changed and it sounds like they're very willing to do that, but 
we just need to decide as a Board is this the look or the type of establishment we want in that 
spot on Chili Avenue, is really the question before us here tonight.  

I just wanted to mention all those items because the developer has worked extensively with 
the Town to try to make this the look and feel that Town is looking for.  

It is unfortunate that the plaza owner hasn't worked with you to try to see where in that 
plaza that it could go or maybe by moving it -- maybe even moving an entrance.  Do they really 
need three entrances into the plaza on Chili Avenue?  Maybe if he was willing to sit down with 
you and talk about that, you might be able to put the building in such a position that you would 
avoid all of the utilities.  But it doesn't sound like that has happened at this point; is that correct?  

MR. KAMBAR:  That's correct. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  If there was more space there, along the front of Chili Avenue, 

would Taco Bell be willing to consider multi-tenancy if the plaza was willing to make some 
changes to the layout of the plaza so that it would fit?  

MR. MASON:  We're always open to trying to make something work.  The difficulty is it is 
not easy.  It would require -- I can't speak for the plaza owner and their ability to close down 
entranceways.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  I know you can't speak for them.  Just for example, just to throw out 
ideas, if they removed the center entrance, you would have from those utilities all of the way 
over almost to the front of the bank to develop something with a parking lot over the top of the 
utilities.  There would still be another space for a 2400 square foot building beyond that.  If you 
really wanted to use your imagination and look at this area outside what is already there -- and I 
know you're willing to do that.  I guess the answer is would you be willing to contact the plaza 
owner to see if the plaza owner was willing to do something like that.  I think that is one of the 
things I would like to hear.  

If you run out of steam and you don't, or -- because I know have you been back here.  You 
have been to the Town numerous times to try to make this work, but looking at all these options, 
really that center entrance is what makes it difficult to develop this piece of land.  I'm not even 
saying it's feasible.  I'm not even saying they could do it, but if they did, it would leave you a 
stretch of land almost twice the size of what you have.  So I will just throw that out there was a -- 

MR. MASON:  Yep.
MICHAEL NYHAN:  -- a comment? 
MATT EMENS:  Another thing I mentioned earlier, and quickly, in summary is that the 

other party to this is the Town.  You guys have worked with DRC.  The Town has a desire to 
make this Master Plan come true.  And if they do, they are also one of the players with fronting 
some of their properties on the other side of Chili Avenue.  

So I would just say, you know, that -- that that's the third partner that you should be -- that 
those two people should be talking to try to figure out how do we make this work.  Maybe there 
are grants out there.  That was talked about when we sat through many nights of our Master Plan 
Committee meetings from the -- from the consultant that we hired through the Town.  

There is a possibility for the Town to partner them with them on making some of this come 
true.  I don't really know what that means legally or financially, but that was an option that was 
talked about also.  

There is options out there and to Steve (Ohrenstein)'s point, there is a lot of great things 
happening in the plaza.  I'm not here to stop that from happening.  But I think that this is a great 
example of a business and a proposal that I'm not against.  I don't think any of us are really 
against this business or this proposal.  It just goes back to the simple fact what you said, is this 
the best spot for it.  And one of the comments that came out of the Architectural Advisory 
Committee that you heard was a simple point of it is a challenge when you have a building that 
needs to front a street, if you're trying to get the Main Street effect and the first thing we do is put 
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the side of the building facing that street.  That is a challenge these guys have been dealing with 
with this project specific and unfortunately, they already start off, you know, with a huge 
challenge in that.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  So I think what I'm hearing is the real issue is it's a single-tenant 
building; is that right, with the look of the multi-tenant?  

RON RICHMOND:  You're hearing that in general, but I will say there are seven voices on 
this Board.  I'm not in concurrence with all of my fellow Board members.  I don't think this is as 
big an issue as we're making it out to be.  But we're a seven-person body for a reason.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Yep.  
RON RICHMOND:  The reality of it is there is a good-looking building here.  The Master 

Plan is a goal, an objective, a desire.  It's not a hard and fast concrete document that says you will 
not.  So it's open to the possibility.  So I think rather than sit hear and almost naysay everything 
that we're looking at, based solely on not wanting to invest a great deal of money to rewrite it not 
knowing where we're going to go forward with it, I think, is doing the applicant an injustice.  
So... 

DAVID CROSS:  If I could, going back to the Chili Center Master Plan, I recall a 
streetscape picture shot done by volunteers looking eastbound up Chili Avenue from the 
intersection of Chili Scottsville Road and it gave a pretty big idea what the blueprint we wanted 
along this area is.  It is right in there.  

To Ron (Richmond)'s point, it's not code.  It's not regulation.  You know, it's -- what we're 
looking for is to meet the intent of that.  I still think everybody architecturally you're way off 
here, way off.  But I don't think we're -- any of us are saying no Taco Bell.  Okay?  

So again, it's what you see going down the street.  I don't think putting together some 
architectural renderings of something closer to what we want and feel will cost a whole lot of 
money.  I don't think.  I'm not writing the checks, but I think it can be done.  I think we really 
need to see what is going on with the proposed pylon sign, if there is one, how that works with 
the building.  Again, I would like to see ornamental fencing.  My apologies I didn't say anything 
back in August because I wasn't here.  That's all I have. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  I think there are plans for a pylon sign that has already been 
approved by the Architectural Advisory Committee.  I think it's supposed to be going up on the 
other side of the entrance.  But the other one has already been taken down, so that front area is 
now -- is now clear.  To everyone -- I think we owe it to the applicant to move forward with this 
application tonight.  Unless there is any objection to doing that.  If there is anything else that the 
applicant would like to say or -- or would like to do prior to that.  We're willing to move forward 
with this so you have a direction in the -- from the Board unless you have a strong feeling one 
way or another you would like to try to work with the plaza owner to do something different and 
with the Town.  

MR. KAMBAR:  I guess I would just like a little bit of clarification maybe from Counsel 
as far as the Chili Center Master Plan and where it stops and whether or not we're in that.  As far 
as the streetscape, the landscaping and the architecture, that can call be addressed.  I think the 
biggest thing we have in front of us tonight is it's not a multi-tenant building.  If we can 
understand that it's approvable as not a multi-tenant building, then we can move forward.  If 
that's the -- the line in the sand, at this point, I don't think we can move forward.  

RON RICHMOND:  I don't think it's a line in the sand.  It's an objective.  The goal is to do 
multi-use buildings.  It's an objective.  It's not a line in the sand.  Unless I have misunderstood it. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  
MR. KAMBAR:  I appreciate your time and effort and feedback on this.  Thank you.  So at 

this point, um, let's do SEQR. 
ERIC STOWE:  Is the applicant asking that we vote on the application as presented?  
MR. KAMBAR:  Yes, please. 

Michael Nyhan made a motion to declare the Board lead agency as far as SEQR, and based on 
evidence and information presented at this meeting, determined the application to be an unlisted 
action with no significant environmental impact and John Hellaby seconded the motion.  The 
Board all voted yes on the motion. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  For conditions they have been in front of the Architectural Advisory 
Committee and I believe they're coming back if there is such a need to do that.  

MATT EMENS:  Correct. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  To work with them to make the building less of a side of a building 

and fit the streetscape.  And just looking to see -- the Conservation Board did make -- did make 
recommendations and comments to the landscape plan, looking for additional landscaping along 
the front of the building, the parking lot, I believe it was, larger trees.  Did you receive that 
feedback?  Did you go in front of Conservation Board?  

MR. KAMBAR:  I don't think we have.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Hmm.  I will read through this real quick.  Okay.  For the Board -- 

they just made comments.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  They -- they went before the Conservation Board back in August 

of '17 it appears. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Do you want me to read their commentary?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Is this one -- right here we received the minutes of -- the minutes of 
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their meeting.  Is that it?  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Those minutes, the minutes of the March 5th meeting?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Yes.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  That would be the most current minutes -- or commentary. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Everybody has that, correct?  You see the comments from the 

Conservation Board on that?  
So with that, I will read off some conditions.  Let me know what else you need on this 

before we take a vote.
Applicant to comply with landscaping plan approved by the Conservation Board.  
Upon completion of the project, the applicant shall submit a landscape certificate of 

compliance to the Building Department and the landscape architect certifying that approved 
plantings have been furnished and installed in substantial conformance with the approved 
landscape plan.  

Approval is subject to the final approval by the Town Engineer and the Commissioner of 
Public Works.  

The Town Engineer and Commissioner of Public Works shall be given copies of any 
correspondence with other approving agencies.  

Applicant shall comply with all pertinent Monroe County Development Review 
Committee comments.  

Applicant shall submit a building design elevation to the Architectural Advisory 
Committee for their review and recommendation.  

Building permits shall not be issued prior to the applicant complying with all conditions.  
The applicant is subject to all required permits, inspections, code compliance regulations.  
Pending approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals for all required variances.  
The applicant to comply with all conditions of the Zoning Board of Appeals as applicable.  
Subject to approval by the Town Fire Marshal.  
Any signage change shall comply with the Town Code, including obtaining sign permits.  
I added one, subject -- or submit a completed parking space inventory relative to the 

current requirements for the plaza which would include this application.  
Any other conditions?  
GLENN HYDE:  A traffic study?
MICHAEL NYHAN:  I believe we -- 

There was discussion off the record. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  There is usually a threshold.  We talked about this, conversation 
about the threshold needed for a traffic study increasing the count of cars?  Is there a standard 
around that?  

DAVID LINDSAY:  It is usually around 100 vehicles per hour on a State road. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  That's what I thought.  So they meet that minimum requested 

for a traffic study.  
Any other conditions?  
DAVID CROSS:  A little discussion before we go to a vote?  Were you ready to go to a 

vote?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  I'm ready for discussion.  
DAVID CROSS:  I guess I have a hard time voting on this tonight with seeing the 

architectural plans we have in front of us.  That is my biggest thing at this point.  I will just leave 
it at that.  I -- I understand you went in front of the Architectural Advisory Committee.  I don't -- 
I didn't see minutes of that.  I don't -- I'm not -- I'm not comfortable.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Matt (Emens), could you -- could you maybe talk about -- the 
meeting was tonight.  They just finished prior to this.  Just not everything discussed, but at least 
your feeling about the ability to change the look of this building. 

MATT EMENS:  I think the major point was to ask them to go look at the guidelines, the 
architectural guidelines in the code.  We talked a little bit about -- I talked a lot about my original 
comments from the summer.  The materials have not changed.  We basically gave them the same 
feedback and comments we had in the summer.  I think we gave you guys good feedback so 
you're able to take a harder look at that and really be able to come back with something.  And 
like I said, just a few minutes ago, the biggest challenge just in general was a real simple one, 
you're fronting a street with the side of a building.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  They would need to come -- so they left that meeting that they 
would be -- if this were approved tonight, to move forward, that they would modify those plans 
and come back to the Architectural Committee. 

MATT EMENS:  Is that correct?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Or approval of those plans in the future or for additional 

modifications. 
DAVID CROSS:  The applicant is okay with that?  
MR. MASON:  Yes.  Absolutely.  That's what we planned on.  
DAVID CROSS:  Very good.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  So it would have to go for approval before the plan could move 

forward.  
PAUL BLOSER:  The plan as itself I don't have any problem with it.  I welcome it.  It is 

just the architectural.  
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MICHAEL NYHAN:  We could also do preliminary tonight and not final and have them 
come back in front of us with architectural plans if they have been approved.  So tonight we'll 
only vote on preliminary and not waive final?  

DAVID CROSS:  Yes. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  Any other comments or discussion?  
Okay.  With those conditions that were stated, application of Hospitality Syracuse, Inc., 

290 Elmwood Davis Road, Suite 320, Liverpool, New York 13088, property owner: Chili Plaza 
Properties LLC; for preliminary site plan approval to erect a 2,204 sq. ft. restaurant at property 
located at 3240 Chili Avenue in G.B. zone. 

DECISION: Unanimously approved by a vote of 7 yes with the following conditions:

1. Applicant to comply with the landscaping plan approved by the 
Conservation Board.

2. Upon completion of the project, the applicant shall submit a Landscape 
Certificate of Compliance to the Building Department from the Landscape 
Architect certifying that all approved plantings have been furnished and 
installed in substantial conformance with the approved landscape plan. 

3. Approval is subject to final approval by the Town Engineer and 
Commissioner of Public Works.

4. The Town Engineer and Commissioner of Public Works shall be given 
copies of any correspondence with other approving agencies.

5. Applicant shall comply with all pertinent Monroe County Development 
Review Committee comments.

6. Applicant shall submit building design elevations to the Architectural 
Advisory Committee for their review and recommendation.

7. Building permits shall not be issued prior to applicant complying with all 
conditions.

8. Application is subject to all required permits, inspections and code 
compliance regulations.

9. Pending approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals of all required 
variances.

10. Applicant to comply with all conditions of the Zoning Board of Appeals as 
applicable.

11. Subject to approval by the Town Fire Marshal.

12. Any signage change shall comply with Town Code, including obtaining 
sign permits.

13. Submit a completed parking space inventory relative to the current 
requirements for the plaza, which would include this application.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  You will need to go in front of the Architectural Advisory 
Committee again and then we'll need those final drawings before you come in for final.  It doesn't 
prevent you from continuing to work with the plaza owner as much as you can to be able to meet 
the architectural requirements.  

All right?  Thank you.  
MR. MASON:  Thank you.  

5. Application of Tim Giarrusso, Rochester Community Inclusive Rowing, owner; 2260 
Dwyer Avenue, Utica, New York 13501, for preliminary site plan approval to erect a 
6,478 sq. ft. boathouse facility at property located at 20 Black Creek Road in RAO-20 & 
FPO zone.

Justin Lattierre and Tim Giarrusso were present to represent the application.

MR. LATTIERRE:  My name is Justin Lattierre with Bergmann Associates here 
representing Rochester Community Inclusive Rowing.  With me is Tim Giarrusso tonight.  I will 
have him give a brief statement in regards to their mission.  

MR. GIARRUSSO:  Hello, Tim Giarrusso, G-I-A-R-R-U-S-S-O.  
Rochester Community Inclusive Rowing is looking to bring to the Town of Chili a rowing 
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and skulling center for people with disabilities.  I want to emphasize to the Board that we are not 
a rowing club.  We are, in fact, a person-centered therapeutic rowing endeavor.  We are 
100 percent volunteer-based.  No one gets paid and no one pays.  

We have focused our work over the last -- since -- since 2014 on serving veterans with 
PTSD traumatic brain injury, loss of limb, addiction dependency challenges.  We work with 
people with multiple sclerosis, cerebral palsy, people who are visually impaired, people who are 
blind, people on the autistic spectrum, cancer survivors and our motto is we can create a 
supportive, inclusive environment where people who are typically left out, not included, get 
access to our waterways.  

Um, like to emphasize that our volunteer nature has this project being a grass roots project.  
We have no State funding, no federal funding, no grants from anyone.  All of the monies are 
being raised through community fund-raising efforts by our volunteers and through donations 
from local businesses across the area.  

So again, we hope you will appreciate the scope of this project.  The reason to build this 
facility is that we can scale and do more for people with challenges.  So thank you.  

MR. LATTIERRE:  So we're here tonight seeking preliminary and final site plan approval.  
Rochester Community Inclusive Rowing is looking to construct a 6,478 square foot boat 

house located off Black Creek Road.  The site is located in the RAO-20 and Flood Plain Overlay 
Zone.  

The building finished floor has been elevated 2 feet above the FEMA map flood elevation.  
Access to the site will be provided off of Black Creek Road.  In regards to parking on the 

site, we have provided five parking spaces to accommodate five skulls in the water at one time.  
Two volunteers will utilize the DEC lot for parking.  And the DEC has confirmed that the service 
agreement with the property owner has been accepted and confirmation has been provided to the 
Town.  

The project will require two variances.  One is to allow parking in the front setback and the 
second is an amendment to an existing variance that was approved in 1967 which will allow 
maximum -- which allowed an maximum building size of 30 by 60 feet.  We are scheduled to 
appear before the Board on March 27th.  

Lighting is being provided on the building only, and that will be sufficient enough to light 
the entire site.  Um, we have revised the lighting fixtures to reduce the -- the light levels on the 
west property line to 1 foot candle.  And all fixtures will be dark-sky compliant.  

And earlier today, responses to engineer's comments and those fixture details were emailed 
out.  I have hard copies if anyone did not receive one or would like one now.  

Does anybody -- 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Everybody should have received them in their mailbox.  Thank you.  
MR. LATTIERRE:  In regards to landscaping for the proposed property, um, we met with 

the Conservation Board on March 5th.  They approved our landscape plan.  In addition to 
providing plantings to screen the residents to the west, we have also contributed 1.9 percent 
additional landscaping to meet and exceed the 1 percent requirement of the Town.  

Um, storm water for the proposed site, um, will be handled via underground system at the 
rear of the site.  This will reduce the increased runoff from the larger building to below existing 
rates.  

Sanitary and water service will be provided off of existing services located on Black Creek 
Road.  

And at this time, no signage is proposed for the site.  If anybody has any questions or 
comments.  

RON RICHMOND:  Out of the five parking stalls, how many will be ADA compliant?  
MR. LATTIERRE:  There are two.  Or no, one ADA spot, I believe.  
MATT EMENS:  Just an AAC update, they did come before us for the second time this 

month.  They were before us tonight.  We gave them feedback last month.  They came back with 
some material samples, selections and colors tonight.  It was a very productive meeting and I 
think they addressed all our concerns.  We gave them some minor feedback and asked them to 
label the plans with the correct manufacture's specifications, names and colors.  So I think we're 
all set there.  

JOHN HELLABY:  Can you just touch briefly on the operation, procedure and stuff again?  
I mean, as far as people in there at any one time.  My only concern is that there is no tournaments 
or competitions that you end up with 20 vehicles parked on that street and the next thing you 
know everybody is coming unhinged here.  

MR. GIARRUSSO:  I appreciate your question.  Again, it gives me a chance to speak to 
the difference.  If anyone in the room is familiar with the Rowing Center at the Genesee 
Waterway Center where actually we host regattas -- or the Pittsford -- if you have been to any of 
those regattas, the parking and -- that's the anthesis of what we're doing.  In fact, how we came to 
develop our mission and gain our 501(c) status was the person-centered approached, the unique 
attention to small groups of people going out in one, two and three boats at a time at the most.  

Okay?  Is that helpful?  
JOHN HELLABY:  Yeah.  So there is never a competition or anything --  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Correct. 
JOHN HELLABY:  -- as far as that goes?  Hours of operation?  Are they from sun up to 

sunset?  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Well, not so much in the winter.  Some people will tend to row early 

in the morning, as early as sunrise when the water is the quietest and the least amount of wind.
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Other than that, I would say the -- most of the -- most of the sculling will take place 
between 5:30 and 7:30 at night.  That's usually when we take folks out.  

JOHN HELLABY:  As far as getting to the water, you have no dock per se, correct?  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  We will have a dock.  We actually do have some black floating dock 

currently on the site sitting there.  We have talked with the DEC about access to the water.  Um, 
my partner Dennis (Fronheiser) is working with a vendor to supply new dock at cost, so we're 
excited about that.  We're going to have to work with the DEC around their handicapped 
accessible ramp that they put in for the kayak system, which really helps us a lot because that 
was very expensive as you can probably well know.  So all that will be addressed.  

JOHN HELLABY:  With them?  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  With them.  In partnership with us.  And again, it's a -- it's a volunteer 

stewardship agreement we have signed with them.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  I think there were a total of 11 spots right when you take into 

consideration the DEC parking next door, correct?  
MR. LATTIERRE:  We left an allowance for six land-banked spots on the site.  So that is 

where the 11 number comes from.  The existing DEC lot has actually more than that.  I don't 
have the exact count on me right now.  It was provided in the DEC letter. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Is the project currently funded through completion?  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Our current funding situation with Canandaigua National Bank, we 

have over $70,000 in cash right now.  The assets in the organization -- I just finished the '99 
taxes -- rest at 165,000.  So Canandaigua National Bank will be working a construction loan with 
us and then turning it into a mortgage for roughly about two-thirds of the project at most.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  So at this time your intention is to start the project and complete it 
and what is the timeframe on that?  

MR. GIARRUSSO:  Well, in the calendar year 2018 is what we're shooting for. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  You only have half of it funded so you will continue trying to raise 

funds and you build it as you go along?  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  No.
MICHAEL NYHAN:  We have seen that happen.  That is why I want to make sure you 

have the funding in place so the building can be completed.  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Correct.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  Thank you.  
DAVID CROSS:  What is the proposed building height?  
MR. LATTIERRE:  Proposed building height is 35 feet.  
DAVID CROSS:  35 feet is within code?  
MR. LATTIERRE:  Yes. 
DAVID CROSS:  Are you going to the Zoning Board of Appeals next month?  
MR. LATTIERRE:  Yes.  The 27th of this month.  
DAVID CROSS:  And then -- so you talked about the adjacent parking at the DEC lot.  
Do you have some sort of pedestrian linkage between the building and that lot without 

people having to come back out to the main road?  
MR. LATTIERRE:  No, at this time, because it is the parking for the volunteers, we 

anticipate they had -- would be able to traverse the lawn area between the lots.  Um, I guess that 
would be something we could consider providing. 

DAVID CROSS:  I have think that would be nice.  That's all I have. 
ERIC STOWE:  All right.  
EAF Question 2, again, the building permit.  And ZBA approval.  
And the dock is temporary?  Or it is a permanent dock?  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  The agreement with the DEC is that the dock goes in and out each 

year according to the seasons.  
ERIC STOWE:  Okay.  There was one on does it encroach any water body, but if it is 

temporary, it doesn't need a permit.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Justin (Lattierre), can you state your comment again regarding 

landscaping?  
MR. LATTIERRE:  For the landscaping, we're providing screening along the west property 

line to screen the residence and then we're providing perennials on both sides of the building to 
meet the Conservation Board requirement.  

PAUL WANZENRIED:  You used a Figure 1.9.  
MR. LATTIERRE:  1.9 percent. 
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Of what?  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  250,000.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Thank you.  Cost of the project?  
MR. LATTIERRE:  Cost of the project.  

COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE:

MS. SEGUSS:  I live right next door.  Carol Seguss.  I live right next door.  I have spoke 
with Tim (Giarrusso) and everything.  My problem is I have ARC right across from me, and they 
have their entrance right there.  Black Creek Road right now, I have a lot of traffic.  The entrance 
for ARC is right across from my house.  So the buses come right in front of it, you know, what I 
mean?  That's the road and they come out onto my road.  Black Creek, where this is going to be, 
I'm right there.  And then there is the boat launch.  
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So I will have a lot more traffic there, which I understand, and I think what they're doing is 
great.  Don't get me wrong.  I think that's great.  But it also -- they took down like the -- I had like 
the wood -- not wood, but I had trees and stuff up.  They came in and took that all down, which I 
knew they were going to do most of it.  But now, I have no privacy at all.  There is nothing.  I 
have -- I mean, people go there now and they sit in their cars.  I don't know what they're doing, 
whatever.  But they're looking straight into my house.  I had to go get black-out curtains as it is 
right now.  And I spoke with, um, I think -- one of the contractors about it.  

I feel like I've lived there 23 years.  I -- I grew up right down the road.  But I never knew -- 
you know, like I said, I think it's a good idea but I would like some kind of privacy.  

So I -- you will be bringing a lot more strange people into the area.  I know some of them 
are disabled.  I'm a nurse.  I know exactly some of the people that are going to be in the 
neighborhood.  Right now, that -- that area right now is not a good area.  People go there all of 
the time.  They -- middle of the night, know what I mean?  There is no cut-off time for when 
people are there.  So that's my concern about it.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Your concern is the landscaping between you and the applicant?  
MS. SEGUSS:  They said something about putting up trees.  That will take forever.  Right 

now on the back of my property I have like a stockade fence.  Just halfway up.  I didn't need it all 
of the way up because I had all of the trees and everything.  Now I have nothing there.  And you 
know, I don't want people -- you know, I want a little privacy.  I don't have it in the front of my 
house any more and now I won't have it here.  So that is -- that is my concern.  

But other than that, I don't really have a concern.  The traffic I could deal with.  I do have a 
gate in front of my -- you know, my driveway.  I have -- my yard is fenced in.  I have a gate.  
But -- because I have grand kids, great grand kids and stuff.  And they're playing and stuff.  You 
get some of these cars going back and forth.  So the traffic is a -- it is an issue, but I can deal with 
that.  My main thing is the privacy.  That it is taken away.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

Michael Nyhan made a motion to close the Public Hearing portion of this application, and John 
Hellaby seconded the motion.  The Board unanimously approved the motion.

The Public Hearing portion of this application was closed at this time.
 

JOHN HELLABY:  There are shrubs. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  You looking at the landscaping plan?  
JOHN HELLABY:  There are shrubs there. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  We do have a landscape plan that has been approved by the 

Conservation Board to provide privacy shrubs down the length of that piece of property; is that 
right, right up to the building?  

MATT EMENS:  What are the height of those?  
JOHN HELLABY:  Mature height, 5 to 10 feet and 4 to 7.  5 to 10 and 4 to 7. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  5 to 10 and 4 to 7 feet.  Would you like to make a comment?  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Yes.  Again, I want to thank Carol (Seguss) for her support.  It has 

been probably three years we have been talking back and forth a little bit.  
MS. SEGUSS:  Right.  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  If it's agreeable down the road or if we can look at a privacy fencing 

up and down there between Carol (Seguss) and ourselves and the Town, we can come to an 
agreement.  We have no issue at all looking to at that as part of the project as we go forward.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  We might look to do it after the facility is up and she has had a chance 

to live with it so we do something that is good and useful as opposed to guessing wrong.  But we 
would be very open to that. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  Thank you.  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Thank you. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Thank you.  
MATT EMENS:  I don't know how we make -- without putting it into as part of the 

conditions of approval, I don't know how we do that after the fact.  I'm not sure that is 
achievable.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  I think the -- I don't know how you would either, but -- 
MATT EMENS:  I want to be conscious of their money, right?  And also of her privacy.  

You know, I think the building is going to act as a privacy fence in that area, because all it is is 
windows for light.  It is not like an assembly space.  People don't hang in there.  The windows 
don't open. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  For the entire parking they have almost 10 foot high shrubs that will 
be like a fence, if you will, right along those spaces.  So I think that's what the Conservation 
Board looked at.  I don't think we have to condition anything in the future to try to do anything.  
It sounds like they're a very good neighbor actually.  If we can take their word at it, if there is a 
problem that a fence needed to be there, they would tell the Town and it would probably be 
erected, I think.  

MS. SEGUSS:  Can I say one more thing?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Actually, ma'am -- 
MS. SEGUSS:  I appreciate that, but my thing is --
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Ma'am, we closed the public comment.  I know you work with him 
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closely, so -- 
MS. SEGUSS:  Okay. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  -- so I appreciate your comments.  Thank you.  You won't have kids 

hanging in the parking lot any more, because there will be a business there.  
Any further discussion on the application?  

Michael Nyhan made a motion to declare the Board lead agency as far as SEQR, and based on 
evidence and information presented at this meeting, determined the application to be an unlisted 
action with no significant environmental impact, and John Hellaby seconded the motion.  The 
Board all voted yes on the motion. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  For conditions to this application, upon completion of the project, 
applicant shall submit a Landscape Certificate of Compliance to the Building Department from 
the landscaping architect certifying all approved plantings have been furnished and installed in 
substantial conformance with the approved landscape plan.  

Approval is subject to final approval by the Town Engineer and Commissioner of Public 
Works.  

The Town Engineer and Commissioner of Public Works shall be given copies of any 
correspondence with approving agencies.  

Applicant shall comply with all pertinent Monroe County Development and Review 
Committee comments.  

Planning Board affirms the recommendation of the Architectural Advisory Committee and 
requests the applicant comply with these recommendations.  

Building permit shall not be issued prior to the applicant complying with all conditions.  
Application is subject to all required permits, inspections, code compliance regulations.  
Pending approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals for all required variances.  
Applicant to comply with all conditions of the Zoning Board of Appeals as applicable.  
Subject to approval by the Town Fire Marshal.  
Any signage change shall comply with the Town Code, including obtaining sign permits.  
And parking permitted by the Planning Board to this site, plan has been deemed sufficient 

based upon the charitable nature of the use, the limited occupancy of this use and based upon the 
information provided -- supplied by the applicant.  

Any other conditions?  
DAVID CROSS:  Pedestrian link between the parking lots?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  I'm sorry?  
DAVID CROSS:  Pedestrian link between the parking lots.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  Is that a sidewalk?  
DAVID CROSS:  Yep.  Gravel path.  Just so people don't go walk back out to the main 

road.  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Just in clarifying, can I just point to this?  Where are you thinking of 

doing -- like here to here (indicating)?  From here to here (indicating)?  
DAVID CROSS:  Yep.  That's all.  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Okay.  The conservation we have had with the DEC is that this is their 

land.  We were thinking about some kind of a gravel path this way and they have talked about 
their handicapped spots here and here (indicating) in terms of blacktop, so I don't know which 
way I would go, but your point is make sure people don't have to do this (indicating). 

DAVID CROSS:  Yes.  As long as you have that connection in the back.  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  That's the plan, yeah. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Is it on the plan?  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  No.  Because that's not our land yet.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  So then -- 
DAVID CROSS:  Pedestrian linkage between the -- 
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Can I just clarify?  So to understand, you want to make sure no one 

has to go from blacktop to road to blacktop to get --  
DAVID CROSS:  Yes. 
MR. GIARRUSSO:  That's the issue?  
DAVID CROSS:  That's the issue. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Linkage somewhere between the two.  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Got it.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Pedestrian linkage. 
DAVID CROSS:  Between both properties.  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Okay.  We can do that. 
DAVID CROSS:  Thanks.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  For the next condition, pedestrian linkage between the property and 

the parking area.  
JOHN HELLABY:  We have the Fire Marshal approval therein, but I don't know if that -- 

if that would cover that.  He just wants the -- 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  Fire Marshal has made comments, just so you know, so to 

work with the Fire Marshal relative to the layouts and exits, et cetera.  Okay.  
Is there a comment?  
ERIC STOWE:  The only thing we had discussed regarding the condition was not to be 

used for banquets, parties, that sort of stuff so this doesn't turn into a wedding facility or a party 
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house type of use.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  I actually had a question on that.  Conditions that we -- the 

condition of approval for this will apply certainly to this, but if they were to sell the building, 
would the conditions apply to the new applicant, as well, or would they have to come back for 
additional ones?  

ERIC STOWE:  Are they changing the use or are they looking for a change of use, or are 
they continuing the use?  I think that is why we need a condition of the site plan approval it's not 
for entertainment and commercial use.  This is a charitable rowing facility.  Not a banquet 
facility type. 

MR. GIARRUSSO:  Correct.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  I had written one down.  I could change it.  No event at this 

location -- no events at the location that will require vehicle parking on the public road.  
Do you think that would cover it or do you specifically want to call out -- 
ERIC STOWE:  That would exceed the parking capabilities onsite.  Or on this parcel.  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Well, we do have the cooperation agreement with the DEC.  
ERIC STOWE:  Or the neighboring DEC parcel.  Is that --  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  That's fair.  
ERIC STOWE:  That was the only other thing we talked about.  It's not a yacht club type of 

thing.  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Correct.  So no event at this location that will exceed the available 

parking on the property or the DEC lot.  
Does that cover it?  
ERIC STOWE:  Hours of events so that it's not -- 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  
ERIC STOWE:  Not going late into the night.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  What are your normal hours of operation?  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  Well, basically if the sun is up, we can row.  So I would say from sun 

up to sundown.   
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  So no events past the hours of sundown.  
ERIC STOWE:  Events only to be held during the hours of dawn to dusk?  
MR. GIARRUSSO:  That's fair.  
MATT EMENS:  Paul (Wanzenried), what is the use of the building, based on the code?  

Do we know the designation yet or you don't know?  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Got to be -- would be an A occupancy.  Off the top of my head, 

yeah.  Whether it's A1 or A2. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Well, the last condition I had, with events only to be held during the 

hours of dawn to dusk.  
ERIC STOWE:  In addition to the parking?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Pardon?  
ERIC STOWE:  In addition to the parking restriction?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Yes.  Yes.
Did you get your question answered?  
MATT EMENS:  Yes.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Any other conditions?  
With those conditions, application of Tim Giarrusso, Rochester Community Inclusive 

Rowing, owner; 2260 Dwyer Avenue, Utica, New York 13501, for preliminary site plan approval 
to erect a 6,478 sq. ft. boathouse facility at property located at 20 Black Creek Road in RAO-20 
& FPO zone.   

MATT EMENS:  We are waiving final?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Yes.  Thank you very much.  
Preliminary site plan with waiver of final.  

DECISION: Unanimously approved by a vote of 7 yes with the following conditions:

1. Upon completion of the project, the applicant shall submit a Landscape 
Certificate of Compliance to the Building Department from the Landscape 
Architect certifying that all approved plantings have been furnished and 
installed in substantial conformance with the approved landscape plan.

2. Approval is subject to final approval by the Town Engineer and 
Commissioner of Public Works.

3. The Town Engineer and Commissioner of Public Works shall be given 
copies of any correspondence with other approving agencies.

4. Applicant shall comply with all pertinent Monroe County Development 
Review Committee comments.

5. The Planning Board affirms the recommendations of the Architectural 
Advisory Committee and requests that the applicant comply with these 
recommendations.
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6. Building permits shall not be issued prior to applicant complying with all 
conditions.

7. Application is subject to all required permits, inspections, and code 
compliance regulations.

8. Pending approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals of all required 
variances.

9. Applicant to comply with all conditions of the Zoning Board of Appeals as 
applicable.

10. Subject to approval by the Town Fire Marshal.

11. Any signage change shall comply with Town Code, including obtaining 
sign permits.

12. The parking permitted by the Planning Board to this site plan has been 
deemed sufficient based upon the charitable nature of the use, the limited 
occupancy of this use, and based upon the information supplied by the 
applicant.

13. No events at the location that will exceed the available parking on the 
property or the DEC lot.

14. Events only to be held between the hours of dawn to dusk.

15. Pedestrian linkage between the property and the parking area.

    Note:   Final site plan approval has been waived by the Planning Board.    

6. Application of Kevin Daley, C & M Forwarding, 45 Jetview Drive, Rochester, New York 
14624, property owner: 3457 Union Street LLC; for preliminary site plan approval to 
erect three industrial buildings totaling 900,000 sq. ft. at property located at 3457 Union 
Street in G.I. zone. 

David Cox, Kevin Daley, Roger Langer and Karl Schuler were present to represent the 
application.

MR. COX:  Good evening, Board members.  Good evening.  I am David Cox with Passero 
Associates Civil Engineering for the project.  Also, we have Kevin Daley with C&M Forwarding, 
Roger Langer, the project architect, and Karl Schuler, who is on the construction side.  

So last time we were here before you, Mr. Stowe had some SEQR concerns over 
preliminary and there were discussions over whether we SEQR should be just approval for Phase 
1 or preliminary overall and then final Phase 1.  

So we had time to go back, digest, sleep on it, think about it.  For starters we have 
addressed the SEQR concerns. So we should be all set there.  That takes that out of the equation.  

On the approval, after talking about it and thinking about, the preliminary overall approval 
is important to us, but most important to Kevin Daley, so I will let him come up and you can hear 
from him instead of me.  

MR. DALEY:  Good evening.  We're back again, enjoying our monthly meetings.  My 
name is Kevin Daley.  I'm the owner of C&M Forwarding.  I bought it from my dad back in 
2000.  

Just to recap, we're an 86-year-old company here in Rochester.  Freight transportation.  
Commercial warehousing.  Local cartage.  We service the entire country.  We -- we manage 
freight and inventories for a lot of our customers, and we currently operate on Jet View Drive our 
trucking operation, the primary operation and we're looking to relocate.  We also operate in 
Gates on Marway Circle and we have a substantial warehouse operation out on Lee Road in 
different two buildings.  One building, two different sections.  Our footprint is close to 500,000 
square feet of warehouse space, and then we came to the Town months ago and we have been 
working diligently.  I appreciate your patience.  We have been trying to get the Is dotted, the Ts 
crossed and work through all of the buzz.  We're talking about a big project here, and appreciate 
you guys working with us.  

Um, but our goal is to build a 300,000 square foot warehouse over on Union Street.  And -- 
which is our Phase 1, and like David (Cox) said, um, you know, we have made a substantial 
investment in the property and we're talking about a huge investment in the infrastructure to 
service our building, and -- and my -- my big concern with the extra property is having an -- an 
ability down the road to develop, sell or use it for ourself but some kind of future plan for that.  

So that is what is holding us up, work out all of the bugs on that and satisfying all of the 
different agencies.  So that is pretty much it in a nutshell.  

David (Cox), if you want to take it from here.  
MR. COX:  So I won't -- I won't go all through the whole dog and pony show again 
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because you have heard it before, but I will just hit the highlights.  Um, this property is located in 
industrial zoned land, really close to 490.  So when you're thinking -- when you're doing master 
planning in the Town, industrial land, you want to put it some place that real -- there is not really 
other uses you can use it to.  

This property here, residential in between two railroad tracks is a no-go.  Even commercial 
tucked in way off the road doesn't have great visibility.  Commercial is not a great fit.  That 
leaves kind of industrial.  So that is one thing.  

Another thing when you're looking at industrial, especially if there is going to be heavy 
truck traffic, where that truck traffic is going to go.  You don't want to put it somewhere where it 
has to go through the Town center, goes down back roads, has to go by residential, huge 
residential neighborhoods.  This site right here, I mean it's pretty much to 490 and -- and out.  So 
very little impact on the Town, and an added benefit is it's on a New York State DOT road.  So 
the trucks, they're not beating up Town roads, you know, that the Town has to maintain and 
repave.  It's coming out onto a State Road.  

So -- so as far as the Town perspective, it -- this is really a good, good, good fit, good 
location for it.  Um, per the zoning code, um, in the industrial zone, you're allowed to have 
50 percent building coverage on the site.  The preliminary overall plans have 26. 

MR. WEBB:  So we're almost half of the allowable building coverage.  As far as SEQR, 
we have addressed or mitigated all of the -- all of the SEQR items.  Traffic being the big one.  
From the last meeting, the thing that Eric Stowe was talking about, was making sure that, you 
know, the DOT and our plans, our traffic study, all say the same thing and all jive.  So one of the 
things we did was revise those plans to show some future mitigation that would happen under 
full build-out.  

At the project entrance, the DOT has said you can do one of two mitigations.  One, provide 
a left-turn lane for the project; or two, use some -- use that access road that goes up under the 
loop and restrict left turns into the project.  Those were the two mitigations that they brought up.  
So on our plans, on our preliminary overall plans, we did a plan for each.  We did have both 
mitigations and how they would work for that and then the other mitigation would be under 
full-build condition, is -- down here at 490, this off ramp here, um, most likely would get a traffic 
signal.  So that is the other mitigation under the full-build condition.  

Um, the project has adequate sight distance.  The DOT has reviewed everything, provided 
the letter that they have reviewed everything and agreed with all of the mitigation.  Mr. Bloser, 
we -- you did have excellent comment about, you know, providing some type of road sign north 
of the overpass.  We did bring that to the DOT and the DOT said no.  Essentially they said that 
since the project does have adequate sight distance, that they don't -- they will not entertain any 
additional signage for that fact.  But I thought it was a good comment and I did try.  They shut 
that down.  

So in closing, C&M Forwarding is very, very excited to be able to maintain their 
headquarters here in Chili and get a little more space and room to operate.  They're really excited 
about their fantastic, really nice-looking building.  And they're ready to -- they want to start 
construction as soon as winter finally decides to take an end.  I can take any questions you have.  

RON RICHMOND:  I just want to make a comment first so I can preface one -- just make 
a statement before I ask one question that I have.  As a resident that lives directly in the 
immediate area, I'm really concerned about the traffic that this is going to present.  I travel that 
thoroughfare, my family does.  The traffic that is going to increase regardless of any study, is  
going to hinder access from 490 East, going north on 259                                                                                         
because I think the applicant states most of the traffic goes out westbound.  I'm concerned about 
the traffic that is going to go north on 259 to Buffalo Road.  Um, I -- I really have serious traffic 
concerns about this project.  I have to remove myself from that as a member of the Board and say 
that I'm strongly in favor of going forward with this.  I think the plan is great.  

It leads to my question of entrance into the property and exit from.  Is there somehow a 
way to make exit off of the property, a southbound exit on -- on 259 only so at least in a more 
congested area of Buffalo and Union, the traffic is limited as much as possible, where at least if 
all the -- that traffic is routed and funneled down 490 by force, um, which would be an exit right 
down south on 259, is that something that can be worked out?  That's the only question I have.  

MR. COX:  So I will get the right plan out here.  So under the mitigation, um, one of the 
options for the entrance would be -- no left turns into the project.  So that would be utilizing that 
loop road that goes under the bridge.  

If we do that, it will have to be incoming traffic using this loop road.  This loop road bend 
is pretty tight, not designed for tractor-trailers.  But if it is one way, the -- a tractor-trailer can 
make the bend.  It sweeps the whole side and the tire drags off in the grass area.  The problem 
with being -- if you have traffic going both directions, you have a truck going here (indicating).  
He can't see any trucks coming here (indicating) because of this overpass, and then you would 
get to a point where trucks meet at the bend and they wouldn't be able to pass each other.  One 
would have to back up.  So there is a real issue with having two-way traffic.  

So if this is only one-way traffic in, that means that traffic coming out of the site, you 
know, for cars that would want to head north, they -- the only way that they could head north 
would be this entrance since they can't use this loop road to exit.  This would be the only exit.  
So to force everyone to head south, if a car wanted to head north, would, um -- they would be 
coming and pulling U-turns or pulling in other people's properties to turn around which would 
not be an idle scenario.  

But as far as trucks, all of the trucks are going to be headed down to -- to 490 and Kevin 
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(Daley) has talked about he is not going to allow any of the trucks to head north.  They will all 
head south.  All his people are south getting on 490.  But some of the -- the workers, employees 
that they live to the north, they would be the -- the few people that are heading north.  

RON RICHMOND:  I get that and that makes sense, but not allowing you to do something 
doesn't mean that driver will not pull out and head northbound, because for him it's the most 
expedient route to get to where his first drop-off or pickup may be.  I don't know.  I don't know.  
It just does concern me about the potential traffic.  

Again, I'm a -- I'm in favor of the project.  I think the plans look great, but the traffic is a 
huge concern.  So I will just leave it at that for now.  

MATT EMENS:  So you're not proposing subdivision as part of this?  It is just you're 
showing lines on here that it could be done?  

MR. COX:  Right.  That we don't need a subdivision for Phase 1.  So -- 
MATT EMENS:  That's on the preliminary plans as a possibility?  
MR. COX:  Right.  
MATT EMENS:  But you're not proposing it as part of the approval, because you're not 

asking for a subdivision.
MR. COX:  Right.  Because if Kevin Daley happens to take over the next few buildings, 

there would be no need for subdivision.  So at that time, um -- if he came to a user he would 
want to sell, at the time we would go for subdivision approval.  

But I have shown based on the layout, if they were a separate users, where the approximate 
lines would be.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  You have also separated this to show us that Phase 1 is the only 
phase you certainly are planning to build out.  Phase 2 would be additional buildings, if needed, 
in the future. 

MR. COX:  Correct.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  That's what we're looking at.  
MATT EMENS:  Just once again to go back to my comments, all you have really done is 

shown another -- another 300,000 square foot building on the front one, which most likely, um, 
you're not going to build three of.  

MR. COX:  Yeah.  We probably won't.  
MATT EMENS:  So your intention of doing so was to show a worse-case scenario?  
MR. COX:  Right.  
MATT EMENS:  So you could get through the scenario?  
MR. COX:  To make sure -- you know, look at the worse-case scenario and see what all of 

the impacts are.  
MATT EMENS:  So either way, after Phase 1 -- it is safe to say, this preliminary plan was 

approved and Phase 1 was approved, for final, um, no matter what you do on the second phase or 
the third phase --

MR. COX:  We have to come back. 
MATT EMENS:  -- you're going to come back anyways, and the use changes, you will 

have to probably revisit the traffic study. 
MR. COX:  We'll have to revisit the traffic study no matter what.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  In conversation with the State DOT, one of the conditions will be 

that prior to any approval of filing Phase 2, a new traffic study can be requested and they're 
required to do it.  

MATT EMENS:  So that's how we handled the note of -- the letter that came from the 
DOT last month?  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Right.  So it would be a condition that prior to any final approval of 
a Phase 2, we would require a new traffic study before even final approval and the State DOT 
would, of course, want to be part of that.  

MATT EMENS:  I -- I -- understood.  I don't have any further questions at this time.  
JOHN HELLABY:  Well, I think we beat this thing up pretty good last time, but you guys 

answered an awful lot of questions from the engineering standpoint as far as storm water-related 
issues.  

MR. COX:  Yep. 
JOHN HELLABY:  The only thing I see in this paper that keeps jumping out at me is the 

mention of a 100-year storm and possible back up here, flooding there, and -- all of the 100-year 
storms is starting to be the norm anymore.  It's not coming every 100 years.  It's coming every 
couple years.  What can you say that is going to give me a warm and fuzzy feeling where they 
talk about the backups in the parking lots being flooded where it won't impact somebody along 
the lines here.  

MR. COX:  Sure.  
There is three streams that traverse the property.  There is one in the back here (indicating) 

that cuts through here (indicating) that we're not changing, touching at all or altering whatsoever.  
So that is fine. 

There is one stream that comes in the middle of the property.  There is a 36-inch pipe 
under the railroad that we're redirecting and tying it back in, back down here.  Just a 36-inch 
pipe.  It doesn't have a tremendous amount of flow.  And the last is a stream that goes under 
Union Street, comes out right here (indicating) and traverses the property in this fashion here 
(indicating).  And we are -- we are rerouting it around the storm water pond and then tying it 
back in.  

So the stream relocation has been designed with the channel section that handles the 



PB  3/13/18 - Page 23

 

100-year rain event.  So during the 100-year rain event, the water is completely contained within 
the channel.  So there is no spilling off onto the other properties, anything like that.  

So what the Town Engineer was bringing up is that there could be some ponding and 
backing up from the storm waters, which could then back up some of the storm sewer, which 
might create some ponding in some of the low parking areas.  You know, you could have 
6 inches of ponding or something like that.  So -- so the -- the applicant is aware during a 
100-year rain event, there is a chance you could have some ponding, temporary ponding in the -- 
in the parking area.  The building footprints are up really, really high so there's no flooding on 
the building impact whatsoever.  Just in this little low parking area there could be some 
temporary flooding, which in a 100-year rain event there is to be expected some temporary 
ponding.  

JOHN HELLABY:  But that should not affect any of the neighbors to the south?  
MR. COX:  Correct.  
JOHN HELLABY:  All right.  That's all I have right now.  
GLENN HYDE:  I just -- I will concur with Ron (Richmond).  I look at this project, and 

it's -- it seems like a perfect use for the parcel of land.  It seems like a great marriage.  But in the 
back of my mind, I'm -- I still struggle with the traffic.  I know what it is going to do to that 
artery, with a high traffic for school buses, and connectivity for the -- for the housing south of -- 
of 490.  So I would just share that.  

DAVID CROSS:  I echo the same concern.  If we did get preliminary for overall, when you 
do come back for final for Phase 2 and/or Phase 3, if you do, that is going to be the biggest issue.  
I -- I am sure you understand that, Kevin (Daley).  

And then the other -- the other comment I had, I know you're showing future subdivision 
lines.  It looks like you would be close on this building to maximum lot coverage, 50 percent 
required.  

Any idea what it is shown as drawn?  
MR. COX:  I think it's 46.  
DAVID CROSS:  It's -- it's probably close.  
MR. COX:  I did do the calc. 
DAVID CROSS:  Did you?  
MR. COX:  Yes.  
DAVID CROSS:  Dave (Cox), that's my only point.  When that one comes back, if it does 

come back, pay attention to that.  Other than that, I'm good.  
PAUL BLOSER:  I have a question.  I'm not sure it was addressed.  I don't think it was.  

And most construction sites as you're excavating the site, you stockpile soil off the site.  I assume 
you're going to use it, but anything where you're digging off a parking lot or footers, is there -- I 
will address this to the side table.  

Is there anything in the code that says by C of O they have to remove those stockpiles to 
put them back down where they might be storing it in stages, proposed stages 2 and 3?  So we 
don't have a mound of dirt out back there?  

PAUL WANZENRIED:  No.  
DAVID LINDSAY:  I don't think there is anything in the code that says they have to 

remove it.  
PAUL WANZENRIED:  Remove it.  
DAVID LINDSAY:  They may end up choosing to -- to sell off some topsoil if they have 

surplus topsoil but that is usually done through a permit with the Town, as well.  
PAUL BLOSER:  I just want to make sure we don't have stockpiled soil for long periods of 

time.  
MATT EMENS:  The question then would be is that the Phase 1 project, does the site 

balance?  
MR. COX:  Yes. 
MATT EMENS:  If it balances, that shouldn't be an issue. 
MR. COX:  The topsoil issue, we don't want to get into the selling of topsoil.  So most of 

the topsoil will be borrow pitted.  So most likely in the pond areas, we're going to over-excavate 
that and take the good material to use it for fill and put the topsoil there.  So we're only going to 
really store the topsoil that we actually need to put back.  

PAUL BLOSER:  I'm just concerned about plugging up higher piles and they sit out there 
for a long period of time because it's Chili, we have water, and, you know, our big concern here 
is how water is flowing.  I don't want to disrupt that with a -- with a pile that we're assuming we 
might use in 3 or 4 for fill later on and that it is not just built up with berms in the back 
someplace.  That's all.  That's all.  

MICHAEL HANSCOM:  Just of a question.  Did you go before the Zoning Board of 
Appeals for the variances?  

MR. COX:  On the 27th we will.  

COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE: 

PAUL KITTEL, 151 King Road
MR. KITTEL:  Paul Kittel.  I live at 151 King Road.  Um, I agree with you guys about the 

traffic.  I travel that road each and every day.  And it is really kind of dangerous, I think, to add a 
lot more traffic and truck traffic.  

Has there been any talk or any possibility of moving that driveway further south on Union 
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to allow a little more space for sight line -- line of vision and vehicle coming in and out, 
employees and/or trucks?  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  There has been.  The entrance is already a curb cut and it was the 
most feasibility access into that property.  

MATT EMENS:  Actually, aren't they moving it further south?  
MR. COX:  We're moving it slightly further south than the existing to make it even better.
MATT EMENS:  But that is as far as you can go. 
MR. COX:  As far as we can go.  
GLENN HYDE:  Any idea how much further it is?  
MR. COX:  50 to 75 feet.  
MATT EMENS:  It's not a lot.  
GLENN HYDE:  You mentioned a light at the 490 East bound exiting traffic there.  Has 

there been any talk or possibility of a light at the King Road intersection, because that's horrible 
to get out of at about 7:10 in the morning, and at 5:15, coming off that eastbound 490 ramp, it's 
about the same.  You have people that are coming out of either Arthurian Way or the other 
residential facilities, housing up there, and they can get frustrated, as I do.  And tend to take 
chances when they shouldn't.  

And if there was a light there, it could at least provide a break in traffic flow to say, okay, 
we can make this left turn coming south on Union, onto King or left onto Union Street south 
from King.  I have seen accidents there, and again, it is just -- I think a level of frustration, people 
are there, and you're trying to get out, and you're late for work or whatever the case may be and 
there is just a lot of traffic.  

Is there any talk about a light possibly at that intersection?  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  We have reviewed the traffic study that was completed and also the 

comments from the New York State DOT and at this point they are not recommending a light at 
that intersection. 

ERIC STOWE:  But it is a State Road and any light would have to come to their approval, 
not this Board's.  

DAVID CROSS:  And I think -- with Phase 1, very little traffic was -- was thought to be 
going north out of this development.  

MR. COX:  Right.  
MR. SLACK:  Okay.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Thank you.  Any other comments. 

Michael Nyhan made a motion to close the Public Hearing portion of this application, and John 
Hellaby seconded the motion.  The Board unanimously approved the motion.

The Public Hearing portion of this application was closed at this time.
 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  I would like to make one, just on the comments from the audience 
and the Board, is that traffic is always something we talk about, and it is always something that 
we have this feeling that it is going to be horrendous, but we have had several professional folks 
and agencies that have looked at the traffic for this both from Phase 1 and as a full build-out and 
the State has given a recommendation as well as the traffic study that was completed by a 
professional organization.  And I -- and I believe the developer has followed every one of those 
recommendations as far as Phase 1, and we will have conditions placed in any approval that 
would require a second traffic -- updated traffic study before any final approval of a Phase 2.  
Whatever that may look like, whether it is one building or two buildings or any buildings.  So we 
have that ability to go back to those professionals and ask them to do the same thing again.  So -- 
while I know there is a lot of concern for traffic, there always is, a great deal of professional eyes 
have looked at this project and all given a recommendation based on those standards, and you 
know, that is -- for Phase 1, the -- the -- the plans, as they are sufficient for Phase 2, they would 
want to look at traffic again.  That will be a condition of this approval if it goes through.  Just 
wanted to make that comment.  

We'll review SEQR.  SEQR.  This Board had already declared itself lead agency as a Type 
I action.  Coordinated review.  That period has lapsed, and Planning Board is the lead agency for 
SEQR.  So with -- I would like to go through the full Assessment Form based on all of the 
information we have received from our Town Engineer as well as the applicant and on the EAF 
form that has been submitted.  This -- 

ERIC STOWE:  And the comments from the Public Hearing. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  And the comments, yes, from the Public Hearing.  Thank you.  
And this form had been sent out, I believe, just for you to review so you could look at it 

ahead of time when we were reviewing the plans so we could go through this.  
So with that, I will start with the Part II, for the -- for the potential possible project impacts.  
One is the impact on land.  "Proposed action may involve construction on or physical 

alteration of the land surface of the proposed site."
The answer to that is yes.  
The sub question, "The proposed action may involve construction on land where depth to 

water table is less than 3 feet."
Based on the information we received, I would say there is no or small impact.  Is there any 

other discussion or disagreement on that?  
"The proposed action may involve construction of a slope 15 percent or greater."
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Based on everything we have seen, I did not see anything greater than there would be no or 
small impact on that.  

Any disagreement?  
"The proposed action may involve construction on land where bedrock is exposed or 

generally within 5 feet of the existing ground surface."
Again, no or small impact may occur.  
Any disagreement on that?  
"The action may involve the excavation or removal of more than 1,000 tons of natural 

material."
No or small impact may occur.  
Any comments?  
"Proposed action may involve construction that continues for more than one full year or in 

multiple phases."
I believe it was six months.  There is no or small impact on that. 
"Proposed action may result in increased erosion whether from full physical disturbance or 

vegetation removal including treatment by herbicide."
Based on the responses, there was no or small impact on that.  
"Proposed action is or may be located within a coastal erosion hazard area."
And there is no or a small impact on that, as well.  
"Impact on geological features.  The proposed action may result in the modification or the 

destruction of inhabit" -- "or inhibit access to any unique or unusual land forms on the site.  
Example:  Cliffs, dunes, minerals, fossils, caves."

And the answer to that is no.  There is no indication on that.  
"Impacts on surface water.  The proposed action may affect one or more wetlands or other 

surface water bodies.  Examples:  Streams, rivers, ponds or lakes."
The answer to that is yes.  
"Proposed action may create a new water body."
There was no or a small impact on that.  
"The proposed action may result in the increase or decrease of over 10 percent or more 

than a ten-acre increase or a decrease in the surface area of any body of water."
I saw no or a small impact on that.  
"The proposed action may involve dredging more than 100 cubic yards of material from a 

wetland or water body."
Again, no or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may involve construction within or adjoining a freshwater or titled 

wetland or in a bed or banks of any other water body."
There is no or small impact that may occur. 
"Proposed action may create turbidity in a water body either from upland erosion, runoff or 

by disturbing bottom sediments."
No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may include construction of one or more intakes for withdrawals of 

water from surface water."  
No or small impact as a result of that.  
"The proposed action may include construction of one or more outfalls for discharge of 

waste water or surface water."
No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may cause soil erosion or otherwise create a source of storm water 

discharge that may lead to a siltation or other degradation of receiving bodies."
No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may affect the water quality of any water bodies within or 

downstream of this site of the proposed action."
No or small impact may occur.  
"Proposed action may involve the application of pesticides or herbicides in or around any 

other" -- "any body of water."
No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may require the construction of new or expansion of existing waste 

water treatment facilities."
No or small impact may occur.  
"4.  Impact of ground water.  The proposed action may result in new or additional use of 

groundwater or may have potential to introduce contaminants to ground water or an aquifer."
The answer to that is no.  
"Impact on flooding.  The proposed action may result in development on lands subject to 

flooding."
The answer to that is no.  
"Impact on air.  The proposed action may include a State-regulated air emissions source."
The answer to that is yes.  
The sub questions:  "If the proposed action requires federal or State emission permits, the 

action may also emit one or more of the greenhouse gasses at or above the following levels:"
And I will read through all of them.  I believe there is no or small impact on any of these 

that may occur, so please change that if necessary.  
"More than 1,000 tons a year of carbon dioxide.  More than 3 1/2 tons a year of nitrous 

oxide.  More than 1,000 tons a year of carbon equivalent or fluorocarbons.  More than .045 tons 
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year sulfur of hexafluoride.  More than 1,000 tons a year of carbon dioxide equivalent of 
hydrochloroflurocarbons emissions.  43 tons a year more of methane."

And again, I have no or small impact may occur.  
"Proposed action may generate ten tons a year or more of any one designated hazardous air 

pollutant or 25 tons a year or more of any combination of such hazardous air pollutants."
No or small impact may occur.  
"Proposed action may require a State air registration or may produce an emissions rate of 

total contaminants that may exceed 5 pounds per hour or may include a heat source capable of 
producing more than 10 million BTUs per hour."

There is no or small impact may occur.
"Proposed action may reach 50 percent of any threshold of A through C above."
No or small impact may occur.
"The proposed action may result in the combustion of thermal treatment of more than one 

ton of refuse per hour."  
And no or small impact may occur.  
"Impact on plants and animals.  The proposed action may result in a loss of flora or fauna."
The answer to that is yes.  
Sub questions:  "Proposed action may cause a reduction in pop" -- "population or loss of 

individuals of any treatment or endangered species as listed in the New York State or the federal 
government that use this site or were found on or near the site."

There is no or small impact that may occur as a result.  
"The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used in rare, 

threatened or endangered species as listed by the New York State or federal government."
No or small impact may occur.  
"Proposed action may cause reduction in the population, or loss of individuals, of any 

species of special concern or conservation need, as listed by New York State or the federal 
government, that use the site, or are found on, over or near the site."

No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by any 

species of special concern and conservation need as listed by the New York State or the federal 
government."

No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may diminish the capacity of a registered National Natural Landmark 

or subject to biological community as established to protect."
No or small impact may occur.  
"Proposed action may result in the removal of, or ground disturbance in, any portion of a 

designated significant natural community."
No or small impact may occur.  
"Proposed action may substantially interfere with the nesting/breeding, foraging or over- 

wintering habitat for the predominant species that occupy or use the projected project site."
No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action requires the conversion of more than ten acres of forest, grassland or 

any other regionally or locally important habitat."
No or small impact may impact may occur.  
"The proposed action (commercial, industrial or recreational projects only) involve the use 

of herbicides or pesticides."
No or small impact may occur.  And I didn't have any other impacts listed.  
"Impact on agricultural resources.  The proposed action may impact agricultural 

resources."
No to that question.  
"Impact on aesthetic resources.  The land use of the proposed action are obviously different 

from or in sharp contrast to the current land use patterns between the proposed project and a 
scenic or aesthetic resource."

The answer to that is no.  
"Impact on historic or archaeological resources.  Proposed action may occur in or adjacent 

to a historic or archaeological resource."
The answer to that was yes.  
The sub questions:  "The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or 

substantially contiguous to, any buildings, archaeological site or district which is listed on or has 
been nominated by the New York Board of Historic Preservation for inclusion on the State or 
National Register of Historic Places."

The answer to that is no or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within or substantially contiguous to 

an area designated as sensitive for archaeological sites in the New York State Historic 
Preservation Office SHPO archeological site inventory."

No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous to, 

an archaeological site not included in the New York SHPO inventory."
No or small impact may occur.  
"Number 11.  Impact on open space and recreation."
No impact.  
"Impact on critical environmental areas."
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No impact.  
"Impact on transportation."  
Yes.  
And the sub questions:  "Projected traffic increase may exceed capacity of existing road 

network."
No or small impact may occur.  
"Proposed action may result in the construction of paved area for 500 or more vehicles."
No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action will degrade existing transit access."
No or small impact will occur.  
"The proposed action will degrade existing pedestrian or bicycle accommodations."
No or small impact will occur.  
"The proposed action may alter the present pattern of movement of people, pattern or 

goods."
No or small impact may occur.  
"Impact on energy.  Proposed action may cause or increase the use of any form of energy."
Yes.  Sub questions:  "Proposed action will require a new or an upgrade to an existing 

substation."
No or small impact may occur.  
"Proposed action will require the creation or the extension of an energy transmission or 

supply system to serve more than 50 single or two-family residences or to serve a commercial or 
industrial" site.

No or small impact will occur.  
"Proposed action may utilize more than 2500M watt hours per year of electricity."
No or a small impact may occur.  
"Proposed action may involve heating or cooling more than 100,000 square feet of building 

area when occupied."
No or a small impact may occur.  
Number 15, "Impact on noise, odor and light.  Proposed action may result in an increase in 

noise, odors or outdoor lighting."
Yes.  
"The proposed action may produce sound above noise levels established by local 

regulation."
No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may result in blasting within 1500 feet of any residence, hospital, 

school, licensed daycare center or nursing home."
No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may result in routine odors more than one hour per day."
No or small impact may occur.  
The impact -- "The proposed action may result in light shining onto adjacent properties."
No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may result in lighting creating sky glow brighter than existing area 

conditions."
No or small impact may occur.  
"Number 16, Impact on human health.  Proposed action may have an impact on human 

health from exposure to new or existing sources of contaminants."
And the answer is no to that one.  
"Consistency with community plans.  Proposed action is not consistent with adopted land 

use plans."
The answer is no to that.  
"Consistency with community character.  Proposed project is inconsistent with existing 

community character."
And the answer is no to that.  
Any other comments or statements on the environmental --
DAVID LINDSAY:  Mr. Chairman, Question Number 5, I think impact of flooding, you 

answered that as no.  Discussions at the side table would suggest that that would be a yes.  All 
sub questions would be answered as no or small impact.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Okay.  So I will go through those.  That's a result of the comments 
with the 100 year -- okay.  

So "Impact on flooding, Question 5.  Proposed action may result in development of land 
subject to flooding?"

Yes.  
"The proposed action may result in development in designated floodway."
No or small impact may occur.  
"Proposed action may result in development within a 100-year flood plain."
No or small impact may occur.  
"Proposed action may result in the development within the 500-year flood plain."
No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may result in or require modification of existing drainage patterns."
No or small impact may occur.  
"The proposed action may change flood water flows to contribute to flooding."
No or small impact may occur.  
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"If there is a dam located at the site of the proposed action, is the dam needed of repair or 
upgrade?"

And no, or small impact may occur.  
Thank you for pointing that out.  Any other comments on the -- on the Environmental 

Impact Study?  
ERIC STOWE:  It is not an EIF.  It's an Environmental Assessment Form Part II.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Did I call it an EIF?  
ERIC STOWE:  You said Environmental Impact Study. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  I apologize then.  It is the Full Environmental Assessment Form.  

Yes, I stand corrected.  Part II.  
So based on all of the information received, all of the information reviewed, um, it is 

determined this project will result in no significant adverse impacts on the environment, and 
therefore, an Environmental Impact Study need not be prepared.  This is a negative declaration 
that's issued.  

Do I have a second?

Michael Nyhan made a motion to declare the Board lead agency as far as SEQR, and based on 
evidence and information presented at this meeting, determined the application to be a Type I 
action with no significant environmental impact, and John Hellaby seconded the motion. The 
Board all voted yes on the motion. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Any other comment?  You know what?  I should probably just go 
through the conditions of approval.  And -- so you could hear each of those and then we'll vote.  

Any other discussion before I do that?  For the Board?  
Let me go through the conditions of approval and let me know if we need to add or omit 

anything.  
So the conditions of approval, provide a copy of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers' federal 

wetlands determination letter and a copy of any approved wetland mitigation plan to the Building 
Department prior to signing of mylars.  

Provide an updated traffic study to the Town and the New York State DOT as requested by 
the New York State DOT prior to final approval of Phase 2.  

Upon the New York State DOT issuing its findings, the developer will be required to 
construct via the highway work permit process the mitigation required for Phase 2 as determined 
by the New York State Department of Transportation.  

No C of O will be provided for Phase 2 until all mitigation has been satisfactorily 
completed as determined by New York State DOT.  Furthermore, if the required mitigation 
includes the use of the loop road, then the applicant will be required to rehabilitate and improve 
the loop road as necessary and is determined by the Town to accommodate and withstand the 
added traffic.  

Three, the applicant will install appropriate signage and other barriers as determined by the 
Town to prohibit use of the loop road by vehicles over 15,000 pounds.  

Four, show the storm water management area easement to the Town of Chili.  Easements 
must be provided -- must provide access to all parts of the storm water management ponds.  

Five, the applicant must still enter into a Storm Water Control Facility Management 
Maintenance Agreement with the Town.  

Six, the applicant must provide a letter of credit to the Town of Chili prior to the 
pre-construction meeting and the start of construction.  

The letter of credit must cover the costs for temporary and permanent storm water 
management features and piping.  The cost for all erosion and sediment control features, the cost 
of SWPPP inspections by the applicant's representative and the cost for Town inspections at a 
minimum.  

A letter of credit estimate must be submitted to the Town Engineer to review prior to its 
review and approval by the Town Board.  

Number 7, supply the Town of Chili a complete list of flammable and toxic materials 
stored at the site.  

Eight, no outside storage of any materials.  
Nine, applicant to submit landscape estimate, project estimate and a stamped landscape 

plan to the Building Department for review and approval by the Town for proof of compliance of 
1 percent expenditure on the landscaping.

Upon completion of the project, the applicant shall submit a landscape certificate of 
compliance to the Building Department from the -- from a landscaping architect certifying that 
approved plantings have been furnished and installed in substantial conformance with the 
approved landscaping plan.  

Approval is subject to the final approval of the Town Engineer and Commissioner of 
Public Works.  

The Town Engineer and Commissioner of Public Works shall be given copies of any 
correspondence with other approving agencies.  

Applicant shall comply with all pertinent Monroe County Development Review comments.  
Copies of all easements associated with this project shall be provided to the Assistant 

Town Counsel for approval and all filing information;  i.e., liber and page number shall be noted 
on the mylars.  

Building permit shall not be issued prior to the applicant complying with all conditions.  
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The application is subject to all required permits, inspections and code compliance 
regulations pending approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals of all required variances.  

Applicant to comply with all conditions of the Zoning Board of Appeals as applicable.  
Subject to approval by the Town Fire Marshal.  
Relocate a hydrant as noted by the Fire Marshal.  
And all lighting to be dark-sky compliant.  
Any other conditions for the preliminary approval?  
With those conditions, application of Kevin Daley, C & M Forwarding, 45 Jetview Drive, 

Rochester, New York 14624, property owner: 3457 Union Street LLC; for preliminary site plan 
approval to erect three industrial buildings totaling 900,000 sq. ft. at property located at 3457 
Union Street in G.I. zone. 

DECISION:  Unanimously approved by a vote of 7 yes with the following conditions:

1. Provide a copy of the US Army Corps of Engineers Federal Wetlands 
Determination letter and a copy of any approved wetland mitigation plan 
to the Building Department prior to signing of the mylars.

2. Provide an updated traffic study to the Town and the NYSDOT as 
requested by NYSDOT prior to final approval of Phase II.  Upon the 
NYSDOT issuing its findings, the Developer will be required to construct, 
via the Highway Work Permit Process the mitigation required for phase II 
as determined by the NYSDOT.  No Certificate of Occupancy will be 
provided for phase II until all mitigation has been satisfactorily completed 
as determined by the NYSDOT.  Furthermore, if the required mitigation 
includes the use of the loop road then the applicant will be required to 
rehabilitate and improve the loop road as necessary and as determined by 
the Town to accommodate and withstand the added traffic.

3. The applicant will install appropriate signage and other barriers as 
determined by the Town to prohibit the use of the loop road by vehicles 
over 15,000 pounds.

4. Show the stormwater management area easements to the Town of Chili.  
The easements must provide access to all parts of the stormwater 
management ponds.

5. The applicant must still enter into a Stormwater Control Facility 
Maintenance Agreement (SWCFMA) with the Town.

6. The applicant must provide a Letter of Credit to the Town of Chili prior to 
the Preconstruction meeting and the start of construction.  The Letter of 
Credit must cover the costs for temporary and permanent stormwater 
management features and piping, the costs for all erosion and sediment 
control features, the costs for SWPPP Inspections by the applicant's 
representative and the costs for Town inspections at a minimum.  The 
Letter of Credit estimate must be submitted to the Town Engineer for 
review prior to its review and approval by the Town Board.

7. Supply the Town of Chili a complete list of flammable and toxic materials 
stored onsite.

8. No outside storage of any materials.

9. Applicant to submit landscaping estimate, project estimate and stamped 
landscape plan to the Building Department for review and approval by the 
Town for proof of compliance with 1% expenditure on landscaping.

10. Upon completion of the project, the applicant shall submit a Landscape 
Certificate of Compliance to the Building Department from the Landscape 
Architect certifying that all approved plantings have been furnished and 
installed in substantial conformance with the approved landscape plan.

11. Approval is subject to final approval by the Town Engineer and 
Commissioner of Public Works.

12. The Town Engineer and Commissioner of Public Works shall be given 
copies of any correspondence with other approving agencies.

13. Applicant shall comply with all pertinent Monroe County Development 
Review Committee comments.
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14. Copies of all easements associated with this project shall be provided to 
the Assistant Town Counsel for approval, and all filing information (i.e. 
liber and page number) shall be noted on the mylars.

15. Building permits shall not be issued prior to applicant complying with all 
conditions.

16. Application is subject to all required permits, inspections, and code 
compliance regulations.

17. Pending approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals of all required 
variances.

18. Applicant to comply with all conditions of the Zoning Board of Appeals as 
applicable.

19. Subject to approval by the Town Fire Marshal.

20. Relocate hydrant as noted by the Fire Marshal.

21. All lighting to be dark sky compliant. 

INFORMAL: 

1. Application of Kevin Daley, C & M Forwarding, 45 Jetview Drive, Rochester, New York 
14624, property owner: 3457 Union Street LLC; for final site plan approval to erect Phase 
1 consisting of one 300,000 sq. Ft. Warehouse at property located at 3457 Union Street in 
G.I. zone. 

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Anything to add to what we have already listened to?   
This is just the approval of Phase 1.  Any questions?  No.  
MATT EMENS:  None at this time.   

The Board all indicated they had no comments.  

MICHAEL NYHAN:  Any comments from the -- I have no other questions or comments, 
as well.  

So for conditions of final, I was going to have all of the same conditions on the final for 
Phase 1.  

Do I need to read all of those again or can I -- 
ERIC STOWE:  I think you can say, "All previous conditions" -- 
MR. COX:  Thank you.  
ERIC STOWE:  -- "apply."  
You have read quite a bit tonight. 
MICHAEL NYHAN:  Yes, I have.  
ERIC STOWE:  All -- all previous -- all prior conditions existing on preliminary site plan 

approval shall apply to the final on Phase 1.  
MICHAEL NYHAN:  All conditions of approval on the preliminary site plan approval 

shall apply to Phase 1?  Good.  Okay. 
Application of Kevin Daley, C & M Forwarding, 45 Jetview Drive, Rochester, New York 

14624, property owner: 3457 Union Street LLC; for final site plan approval to erect Phase 1 
consisting of one 300,000 sq. Ft. Warehouse at property located at 3457 Union Street in G.I. 
zone. 

DECISION: Unanimously approved by a vote of 7 yes with the following condition:

1. All conditions of approval on the preliminary site plan approval shall 
apply to phase 1. 

Michael Nyhan made a motion to accept the 2/13/18 meeting minutes, and John Hellaby 
seconded the motion.  All Board members were in favor of the motion.

The meeting ended at 9:41 p.m.


